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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands
(UNAUDITED)

June 30, December 31
2007 2006
ASSETS
Cash $ 187,720 $ 96,36!
Restricted cas 2,012 2,011
Shor-term investment 121,68: -
Accounts receivabl— net 111,15: 113,37:
Due from affiliates 37,99¢ 37,54
Inventories 167,34 145,41(
Prepaid and other current ass 20,35¢ 19,83(
Deferred taxes — current portion 120,19¢ 103,11(
Total current asse 768,46° 517,63¢
Property, plant and equipme— net 1,251,95: 1,218,77
Intangible asse— net 54,59¢ 61,59
Goodwill 94,84« 94,84«
Other assets 335,81 292,38(
TOTAL $ 2,505,671 $ 2,185,23.
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, trac $ 70,07C $ 64,84¢
Due to affiliates 279,82( 282,28:
Accrued and other current liabiliti 68,47: 75,14
Long term deb— current portior 61€ 30,10¢
Accrued employee benefits co— current portior 11,08: 11,08:
Convertible senior note 175,00( 175,00(
Industrial revenue bonds 7,81F 7,81t
Total current liabilities 612,87 646,27
Senior unsecured notes paya 250,00t 250,00(
Nordural deb 54,01¢ 309,33:
Accrued pension benefits co— less current portio 20,78¢ 19,23¢
Accrued postretirement benefits cc— less current portio 214,77 206,41!
Due to affiliates— less current portio 655,78: 554,86
Other liabilities 42,067 27,81
Deferred taxes 54,20¢ 41,581
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,291,63: 1,409,24
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (NOTE 8
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Common stock (one cent par value, 100,000,000 slaaurthorized; 40,952,070 ant

32,457,670 shares issued and outstanding at Jur#8? and December 31,

2006, respectively 41C 32t
Additional paic-in capital 853,27 432,27(
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (111,890 (166,579
Accumulated deficit (140,629 (136,31)

Total shareholders’ equity 601,16 129,71(
TOTAL $ 2,505,671 $ 2,185,23.

See notes to consolidated financial statements

-1-



Table of Content

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amol
(UNAUDITED)
Three months ended Jun:

30, Six months ended June 3
2007 2006 2007 2006
NET SALES:
Third-party customer $ 370,88 $ 356,24: $ 751,73t $ 654,71!
Related parties 93,12: 49,73¢ 159,92¢ 98,20"
464,00! 405,97¢ 911,66: 752,92.
Cost of goods sold 355,61. 297,97. 692,61¢ 568,45(
Gross profit 108,39: 108,00 219,04« 184,47
Selling, general and administrative expenses 14,44¢ 8,37¢ 27,41: 20,49¢
Operating income 93,941 99,62¢ 191,63: 163,97
Interest expens (8,637) (8,799 (19,680) (15,55()
Interest incom: 1,19¢ 152 3,211 34¢
Net loss on forward contrac (205,249 (30,45¢) (204,85¢) (317,21¢)
Other income (expense) - net (3,139 37 (3,295 (124)
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in a@gngs of
joint ventures (121,87) 60,56 (32,989 (168,56%)
Income tax (expense) benefit 57,04: (19,109 28,95¢ 65,24
Income (loss) before equity in earnings of joint vtures (64,830 41,45 (4,030 (103,319
Equity in earnings of joint ventures 4,16 4,34 7,614 7,541
Net income (loss) $ (60,669 $ 45,800 $ 3,58/ $  (95,77)
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic $ @77 $ 141 $ 011 $ (2.9¢)
Diluted $ 177 $ 138 $ 0.1C $ (2.9¢)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING:
Basic 34,22¢ 32,41¢ 33,37 32,34:
Diluted 34,22¢ 34,29’ 35,597 32,34:

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands
(UNAUDITED)
Six months ended June 3(

2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss $ 3,58/ % (95,777
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by operating activitie
Unrealized net loss on forward contra 150,16( 283,57¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 38,01 32,224
Deferred income taxe (48,949 (29,80¢)
Pension and other post retirement ben: 9,907 7,13¢
Stocl-based compensatic 2,59¢ 3,872
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic (487) (2,090
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass (95) 45
Non-cash loss on early extinguishment of ¢ 2,461 -
Increase in shc-term investment— net (121,68)) --
Undistributed earnings of joint ventur (7,619 (7,547
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl- net 2,21¢ (35,17Y)
Due from affiliates (45€) 3,00z
Inventories (21,939 (17,880
Prepaid and other current ass (2,650 (3,459
Accounts payable, trac 7,341 (710
Due to affiliates 15,47+ 2,17
Accrued and other current liabilitis (16,855 (69,249
Other — net 10,05: (4,05§)
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,08 67,29(
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Nordural expansio (58,98) (109,009
Purchase of property, plant and equiprn (7,679 (7,569
Restricted and other cash depo 2,59¢ (4,007
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 543 10
Net cash used in investing activities (63,517 (120,56
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings of lon-term deb 30,00( 69,00(
Repayment of lor-term debi (314,800 (28¢)
Net repayments under revolving credit faci - (8,069
Excess tax benefits from sha-based compensatic 487 1,09C
Issuance of common stock — net of issuance costs 418,10! 2,961
Net cash provided by financing activities 133,79. 64,69
NET CHANGE IN CASH 91,36: 11,42
Cash, beginning of the period 96,36¢ 17,75:
Cash, end of the period $ 187,720 $ 29,17¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
(UNAUDITED)

1. General

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidatedrfaial statements of Century Aluminum Company sthdvel read in conjunction
with the audited consolidated financial statemémtshe year ended December 31, 2006. In managésrapinion, the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements reflect all atpemnts, which are of a normal and recurring natiinat, are necessary for a fair presentatic
financial results for the interim periods present@perating results for the first six months 002@re not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for the year ending Decemhe2@®7. Throughout this Form 10-Q, and unlessexsgby stated otherwise or as the
context otherwise requires, "Century Aluminum,” h@ey," "we," "us,"” "our" and "ours" refer to CemguAluminum Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, wehpaed short-term investments with maturities grethan 90 days that are not
considered cash equivalents. Our accounting pédicthese short-term investments is as follows:

Short-term investments\We account for short-term investment securitiesdoordance with Statement of Financial Accountitam&ard
(“SFAS™) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investntsrin Debt and Equity Securities.” At June 30, 208ur short-term investments
(primarily auction-rate securities) were classifeegitrading securities and recorded at fair valitle wnrealized holding gains and losses
included in net earnings.

2. Equity Offering

In June 2007, we completed a public equity offean§,337,500 shares of common stock, which indiuthe exercise of the over-
allotment option of 1,087,500 shares of commonkstata price of $52.50 per share, raising $437&f6re offering costs. We sold the
8,337,500 shares of common stock in a simultanetiagng in the United States and Iceland. Shafeommon stock offered and sold in
Iceland are represented by global depositary rés;eigth one depositary receipt representing oreeshf common stock. The offering costs
were approximately $23,686, representing undemygitiscounts and commissions and offering expenses.

In June 2007, we used a portion of the net procedsthe equity offering to repay $200,000 of pipal of the Nordural senior term
loan facility. The balance of the equity offeripgceeds is expected to be used as partial furidimthe construction of a greenfield
aluminum smelter near Helguvik, Iceland and foregahcorporate purposes.

3. Earnings Per Share
The following tables provide a reconciliation oétbomputation of basic and diluted earnings peresha

For the three months ended June 3(

2007 2006
Income Shares Pel-Share Income Shares Pel-Share
Net income (loss $ (60,669 $  45,80(
Basic EPS
Income (loss) applicable to
common shareholde (60,664 34,22: % .77 45,80( 32,41¢ $ 1.41
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Options -- -- -- 99
Service-based stock awart -- -- -- 93
Assumed conversion of
convertible debt -- -- 49C 1,68¢
Diluted EPS:;
Income (loss) applicable to
common shareholders with
assumed conversion $ (60,66 34,22: $ (1.79) $  46,29( 34,297 $ 1.3t
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen- continued

For the six months ended June 30,
2007 2006
Income Shares PerShare Income Shares Per-Share
Net income (loss $ 3,58¢ $_(9577)
Basic EPS
Income (loss) applicable to
common shareholde 3,58¢ 33,37. % 0.11 (95,77) 32,34, $ (2.96¢)
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Options -- 57 -- --
Service-based stock awart -- 75 -- --
Assumed conversion of
convertible debt -- 2,09/ -- --
Diluted EPS:;
Income (loss) applicable to
common shareholders with
assumed conversion $ 3,58¢ 3559 g 0.1C $ (95,779 32,341 ¢ (2.9¢)

Options to purchase 440,289 and 384,372 sharesnofon stock were outstanding as of June 30, 20672806, respectively. For t
three months ended June 30, 2007, all optionsicespased stock and shares to be issued upon the assomeersion of our convertible d
were excluded from the calculation of diluted ERBduse of their antidilutive effect on earnings gleare. For the six month period en
June 30, 2007, 24,000 options were excluded fragrcticulation of diluted EPS because the exeraise pf these options was greater 1
the average market price of the underlying comntooks Based on the average price for our commaeksn the six months ended June
2007, we would have been required to issue appmateiy 2,094,000 shares upon an assumed converkioar @onvertible debt. For t
three month period ended June 30, 2006, 25,000raptivere excluded from the calculation of dilutdeiSEbecause the exercise price of t
options was greater than the average market pfiteeaunderlying common stock. Based on the awemge for our common stock in
three months ended June 30, 2006, we would have eegiired to issue approximately 1,686,000 shapes an assumed conversion of
convertible debt. For the six month period endedeJ30, 2006, all options, servibased stock and shares to be issued upon the a
conversion of our convertible debt were excludednfthe calculation of diluted EPS because of theiidilutive effect on earnings per share.

Service-based stock for which vesting is based wpotinued service is not considered issued argtanding shares of common stock
until vested. However, the service-based stockisidered a common stock equivalent and thereffi@reveighted average service-based
stock is included, using the treasury stock metirodpmmon shares outstanding for diluted earnpegsshare computations, if they have a
dilutive effect on earnings per share. There v84r834 and 98,500 unvested shares of service-lsésekl outstanding at June 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Our goal-based performanceeghits are not considered common stock equivalemtil it becomes probable that
performance goals will be obtained.

4. Income Taxes

We adopted the provisions of Financial Accountingn8ards Board ("FASB") Interpretation No. 48, “Acating for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes” ("FIN 48"), on January 1, 2007. Assult of adoption, we decreased our January 17 28ained earnings balance by
approximately $7,900. As of the adoption date hae unrecognized tax benefits of $21,800. If recxed, $18,300 of this amount would
affect the effective tax rate.

It is our policy to recognize potential accruecdeneist and penalties related to unrecognized tagfitgin income tax expense. We
recognized approximately $5,000 of interest, ndedéral benefits, at January 1, 2007 which isliidetl as a component of the $21,800 net
unrecognized tax benefits noted above. Duringhhee and six months ended June 30, 2007, we reasafas income tax expense
approximately $800 and $1,500, respectively, ireptal interest associated with uncertain tax pmsst
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen- continued

Century and its subsidiaries file income tax resumthe U.S. federal jurisdiction and variousestatd local jurisdictions within the
United States, and in Iceland. We have substintiahcluded all material U.S. federal income taatt@rs for years through 1999. Federal
income tax returns for 2000 through 2002 are ctiyemder examination by the Internal Revenue ®er{ilRS"). In connection with these
examinations, the IRS has raised issues and prdpaseleficiencies. We have filed an administe@ppeal with the IRS and it is likely that
this examination will conclude in 2007. We beliexe tax position is well supported and, basedwmnent information, we do not believe the
outcome of the tax audit will have a material adeampact on our financial condition or result®pérations. Our federal income tax returns
beginning in 2003 are subject to examination. Malstate and local income tax matters have beecladed for years through 2002. West
Virginia income tax returns for 2003 through 2008 eurrently under examination and the majoritpthier state returns beginning in 2003
are subject to examination. Our Icelandic taxmetare subject to examination and income tax msaltteve been concluded for years through
2001.

We do not expect a significant change in the baariainrecognized tax benefits within the next tweahonths with the exception of
reductions for potential payments to the IRS ttles¢he examination as noted above.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, vegrézed a $4,311 tax benefit related to the ina@éashe carrying amount of defer
tax assets as a result of a tax law change in Wgghia.

5. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

June 30, 200 December 31, 200!
Raw material $78,92. $61,74¢
Work-in-process 21,41( 20,52¢
Finished good 7,00: 5,43¢
Operating and other supplies 60,00¢ 57,69¢
Inventories $167,34- $145,41(

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etatksing the first-in, first-out method.
6. Goodwill and Intangible Asset

We test our goodwill for impairment annually in thecond quarter of the fiscal year and at otheedimhenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill mageed its fair value. If the carrying value of dedgll exceeds its fair value, an impairment
loss will be recognized. No impairment loss warded in 2007 or 2006. The fair value is estimatsing market comparable information.

The intangible asset consists of the power contregtiired in connection with our acquisition of thawesville facility
(“Hawesville”). The contract value is being ampetil over its term using a method that results imuahamortization equal to the percentage
of a given yeas expected gross annual benefit to the total aleapio the total recorded value of the power caettr As of June 30, 2007, 1
gross carrying amount of the intangible asset vi&b®86 with accumulated amortization of $101,387.

For the three month periods ended June 30, 2002@0%] amortization expense for the intangible tatsdaled $3,498 and $3,262,
respectively. For the six month periods ended B&007 and 2006, amortization expense for ttangible asset totaled $6,995 and $6,
respectively. For the year ending December 317 20@ estimated aggregate amortization expengbdantangible asset will be
approximately $13,991. The estimated aggregatet@ation expense for the intangible asset thrathghHawesville power contrastterm is
as follows:
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen- continued

2008 2009 2010

Estimated Amortization Expen: $ 15,07¢  $ 16,14¢ $ 16,37¢

The intangible asset is reviewed for impairmenadcordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Igihfe Assets,whenever even
or circumstances indicate that its net carrying amvonay not be recoverable.

7. Debt

December 31,
June 30, 2007 2006

Debt classified as current liabilitie
1.75% convertible senior notes due 2024, interagaple semiannually (1)(2)( $ 175,00 $ 175,00(
Hancock County industrial revenue bonds due 20®#8rést payable quarterly

(variable interest rates (not to exceed 12%) 7,81¢ 7,81¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 61€ 30,10¢
Debt classified as n-current liabilities:
7.5% senior unsecured notes payable due 2014esttpayable semiannually (5)(6) 250,00t 250,00t
Nordural’s senior term loan facility maturing in D) variable interest rate, interest
payments due semiannually through 2010 (3)(4 46,50( 301,50(
Nordural’s various loans, with interest rates raggrom 5.55% to 6.75% due throu
2020, less current portion 7,51¢ 7,831
Total Debt $ 487,45, $ 772,25

1)

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

The convertible notes are classified as ctifsenause they are convertible at any time by tiden. The IRBs are
classified as current liabilities because theyranearketed weekly and could be required to be deypadn demand if
there is a failed remarketing. The IRB interes¢ @t June 30, 2007 was 4.02

The convertible notes are convertible at amg tby the holder at an initial conversion rat8af7430 shares of Century
common stock per one thousand dollars of prin@pabunt of convertible notes, subject to adjustmémtsertain
events. The initial conversion rate is equivaterd conversion price of approximately $30.5409gb&re of Century
common stock. Upon conversion of a convertible nite holder of such convertible note shall receash equal to the
principal amount of the convertible note and, atelaction, either cash or Century common stocla combination
thereof, for the convertible no’ conversion value in excess of such principal amatiany.

Nordural's senior term loan interest ratewate) 30, 2007 was 6.87%. The senior term loan fa@bntains customary
covenants, including limitations on additional ibtedness, investments, capital expenditures (thiagr related to the
expansion project), dividends, and hedging agretsnevordural is also subject to various financiaenants,
including a net worth covenant and certain mainteeacovenants, including minimum interest coveiaue debt
service coverage beginning as of December 31, -

Nordural's obligations under the senior tepaml facility are secured by a pledge of all of Nwed's shares pursuant to a
share pledge agreement with the lenders. In aagisubstantially all of Nordural's assets are gieldas security under
the loan facility.

Century’s obligations pursuant to the noteswarconditionally, jointly and severally guaranteed a senior unsecured
basis by all of our existing domestic restricteisdiaries.

-7-
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen- continued

(6) The indenture governing these obligations @ontustomary covenants, including limitations om ability to incur
additional indebtedness, pay dividends, sell agsettock of certain subsidiaries and purchasedeem capital stoc

(7) The senior term loan facility agreement repaghschedule was amended in March 2007 to allovepgyment of the
August 2007 principal payment on March 31, 2007tuher amendment in April 2007 allowing additibpaepaymen
without penalty preceded an additional prepayméritiveliminated all periodic principal paymentshelremaining
outstanding principal amount is due February 2802

(8) On or after August 15, 2009, we have the aptioredeem any of the senior notes, in whole qairt, at an initial
redemption price equal to 103.75% of the princgrabunt, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Thewptien price will
decline each year after 2009 and will be 100% efgttincipal amount, plus accrued and unpaid intebegjinning on
August 15, 2012

We have a $100,000 senior secured revolving cfadiiity (“Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of ks that will mature September 19,
2010. Our obligations under the Credit Facilitg anconditionally guaranteed by our domestic sudsas (other than Century Aluminum
Holdings, Inc., Century Louisiana, Inc., Centunfifdania, LLC, Century Aluminum Development LLC am¢brdural US LLC) and secured
by a first priority security interest in all accasmeceivable and inventory belonging to Century enr subsidiary borrowers. The availability
of funds under the Credit Facility is subject 1,000 reserve and limited by a specified borrogviiase consisting of certain eligible
accounts receivable and inventory. Borrowings utigke Credit Facility are, at our option, at thé80R rate or bank base rate, plus or minus
in each case an applicable margin. The CreditiBais subject to customary covenants, includiimgiiations on capital expenditures,
additional indebtedness, affiliate transactiorendi guarantees, mergers and acquisitions, divigeligtributions, capital redemptions and
investments. We could issue up to a maximum of(8E5jn letters of credit under the Credit FacilitWe have issued letters of credit totaling
$2,277 as of June 30, 2007. We had no other malisig borrowings under the Credit Facility as ofid30, 2007. As of June 30, 2007, we
had a borrowing availability of $97,723 under thredit Facility. We pay a commitment fee for thaisad portion of the line.

8. Contingencies and Commitment:
Environmental Contingencies

We believe our current environmental liabilitiesrat have, and are not likely to have, a matedakase effect on our financial
condition, results of operations or liquidity. Hoveg, there can be no assurance that future reqeitenor conditions at currently or formerly
owned or operated properties will not result ibiliies which may have a material adverse effect.

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. (“CAWV") aatinues to perform remedial measures at our Raveodw\est Virginia facility
(“Ravenswood”) pursuant to an order issued by tmeilenmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) in 1994 (tt8008(h) Order”). CAWYV also
conducted a RCRA facility investigation (“RFI”) uadthe 3008(h) Order evaluating other areas at fiaveod that may have contamination
requiring remediation. The RFI has been approveddpropriate agencies. CAWV has completed inteeémediation measures at two sites
identified in the RFI, and we believe no furthemegliation will be required. A Corrective Measurésdy, which will formally document the
conclusion of these activities, is being completétth the EPA. We believe a significant portion bétcontamination on the two sites
identified in the RFI is attributable to the opéras of third parties and is their financial resgibiity.

Prior to our purchase of Hawesville, the EPA issadithal Record of Decision (“ROD”) under the Corpensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act. By agresimSouthwire is to perform all obligations untter ROD. Century Aluminum of
Kentucky, LLC (“Century Kentucky”) has agreed tceogte and maintain the ground water treatment systguired under the ROD on
behalf of Southwire, and Southwire will reimbursen@iry Kentucky for any expense that exceeds $480ally.
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Century is a party to an EPA Administrative Order@onsent (the “Order”) pursuant to which othert asl present owners of an
alumina refining facility at St. Croix, Virgin Istals have agreed to carry out a Hydrocarbon Recd®aryto remove and manage
hydrocarbons floating on groundwater underlyingfewglity. Pursuant to the Hydrocarbon RecovemrPrecovered hydrocarbons and
groundwater are delivered to the adjacent petrolexfinery where they are received and managed. hex# Martin Corporation
(“Lockheed”), which sold the facility to one of oaffiliates, Virgin Islands Alumina Corporation (fa&lco”), in 1989, has tendered indemnity
and defense of this matter to Vialco pursuant éoténms of the Lockheed—Vialco Asset Purchase Agea¢. Management does not believe
Vialco's liability under the Order or its indemnity Lockheed will require material payments. Thgiouune 30, 2007, we have expended
approximately $700 on the Recovery Plan. Althotigdre is no limit on the obligation to make indefimaition payments, we expect the
future potential payments under this indemnificatio comply with the Order will be approximatelyOkb which may be offset in part by s¢
of recoverable hydrocarbons.

In May 2005, Century and Vialco were among the deéémts listed in a lawsuit filed by the Commissiookthe Department of Planning
and Natural Resources, in his capacity as TrusteNdtural Resources of the United States Virglands. The complaint alleges damages to
natural resources caused by alleged releases fremlumina refinery facility at St. Croix and thdjacent petroleum refinery. Lockheed has
tendered indemnity and defense of the case to ¥ @lcsuant to the terms of the Lockheed-Vialco ABsgchase Agreement. The complaint
seeks unspecified monetary damages, costs andeattf@es. Vialco and the other defendants hagd fieparate motions to dismiss asserting
certain affirmative defenses including the stabftBmitations. No ruling on those motions has eendered as of this date.

In July 2006, Century was named as a defendanthtegeith certain affiliates of Alcan Inc. in a lauit brought by Alcoa Inc. seeking to
determine responsibility for certain environmermaemnity obligations related to the sale of a ehstinum plate manufacturing facility
located in Vernon, California which we purchasemfrAlcoa Inc. in December 1998, and sold to Alcatid?l Products-Ravenswood LLC
(formerly Pechiney Rolled Products, LLC) in July9®9 The complaint also seeks costs and attorney fee

In December 2006, Vialco and the company that jsetl the assets of Vialco in St. Croix in 1995 wermed as defendants in a law:
filed by the Commissioner of the Department of Rlag and Natural Resources. The complaint alléigeslefendants failed to take certain
actions specified in a Coastal Zone managementipmsned to Vialco in October 1994, and seeksittay and other unspecified monetary
penalties for the alleged violations. Vialco filiéslanswer to the complaint asserting factual &fidnative defenses.

It is our policy to accrue for costs associatedweitvironmental assessments and remedial effortsitbecomes probable that a liabi
has been incurred and the costs can be reasorstithated. The aggregate environmental-relateduaddiabilities were $885 and $605 at
June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectikklsiccrued amounts have been recorded withouhgieiffect to any possible future
recoveries. With respect to cost for ongoing envinental compliance, including maintenance and mdnij, such costs are expensed as
incurred.

Because of the issues and uncertainties descriimaaand our inability to predict the requiremesftfuture environmental laws, there
can be no assurance that future capital expendiamd costs for environmental compliance will reotdna material adverse effect on our
future financial condition, results of operationsJiquidity. Based upon all available informationanagement does not believe that the
outcome of these environmental matters will haweagerial adverse effect on our financial conditie@sults of operations, or liquidity.

Legal Contingencies
We have pending against us or may be subject tousatawsuits, claims and proceedings related piiyng employment, commercial,

environmental, safety and health matters. Althoitighnot presently possible to determine the onte@f these matters, management beli
their ultimate disposition will not have a matealverse effect on our financial condition, resaftsperations, or liquidity.
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Power Commitments

Hawesville purchases substantially all of its pofvem Kenergy Corp. (“Kenergy”), a retail electri;ember cooperative of the Big
Rivers Electrical Corporation (“Big Rivers”), undampower supply contract that expires at the er@Da@D. Under this contract, we have
locked in prices for approximately 73% of this pow&V/e continuously review our options to managehhblance, or 27%, of this power and
lock in prices when we believe the combination égand term are appropriate. Kenergy acquirest miothe power it provides to
Hawesville from a subsidiary of LG&E Energy Corpiwa (“LG&E”"), with delivery guaranteed by LG&E.

Appalachian Power Company (“APC0”) supplies alRafvenswood’s power requirements under an agreest@nices set forth in
published tariffs, which are subject to change2006, the Public Service Commission for the Stat/est Virginia (“PSC”) approved an
experimental rate design through June 2009 in adiorewith an increase in the applicable tarifiesat Under the experimental rate,
Ravenswood may be excused from or may defer the@at/of the increase in the tariff rate if aluminprices as quoted on the LME fall
below pre-determined levels. After December 3D72@CAWYV may terminate the agreement by providi@grionths notice of termination.

In May 2007, the PSC agreed on proposed adjustrieethe tariff rates paid by purchasers of eleatrower from APCo. APCo
requested an increase in the tariff rate estaldighéuly 2006 for pollution control additions anigiher than anticipated fuel, purchased pc
and capacity charges. The agreement became eéfeletly 1, 2007 and increased the special contadéetfor CAWYV by approximately ten
percent.

The Mt. Holly facility (“Mt. Holly”) purchases albf its power from the South Carolina Public SenAaghority at rates established by
published schedules. Mt. Holly’s current power cact expires December 31, 2015. Power deliveramitih 2010 will be priced as set forth
in currently published schedules, subject to adjesits for fuel costs. Rates for the period 201aubh 2015 will be as provided under then-
applicable schedules.

The Nordural facility at Grundartangi, Iceland (t®dartangi”) purchases power from Landsvirkjun ¢aer company owned by the
Republic of Iceland), Hitaveita Sudurnesja hf. (“H8nd Orkuveita Reykjavikur (“OR”) under long-terontracts due to expire in 2019,
2026 and 2028. The power delivered to Grundartasngiiced at a rate based on the LME price for primaluminum and is from
hydroelectric and geothermal sources.

In April 2006, we announced an expansion of then@auntangi facility from 220,000 metric tonnes peay (“mtpy”) to 260,000 mtpy
(“Phase V expansion”) which is expected to be cetel in the fourth quarter of 2007. OR has agteettliver the electrical power for the
additional expansion capacity by late 2008. Ity 2007, we formalized our agreement with Landsvinkjo deliver electrical power for the
start-up of the Phase V capacity on an interimsydsavailable, until electrical power is availatftom OR in late 2008. To date, we have
energized 53 of the 80 cells of the expansion dgpakhe energizing of further cells is subjecitailable power. We expect that production
capacity at Grundartangi will reach 260,000 mtpythy end of the fourth quarter of 2007.

In April 2007 and June 2007, Nordural signed eleatpower supply agreements with HS and OR, rdaspy, for the planned primary
aluminum reduction facility in Helguvik, IcelandUnder the agreements, power will be supplied tgpthaned Helguvik facility in stages,
beginning with an initial phase of up to 250 MW, ierhwill support production capacity of up to 15000mtpy. HS will provide up to 150
MW in this initial stage, and OR will supply up160 MW. Electricity delivery for this first phasetargeted for late 2010. The agreements
provide for a total of 435 MW, which will ultimateprovide power for a 250,000 mtpy facility. The@gments are subject to the satisfaction
of certain conditions.

Labor Commitments

Approximately 81% of our U.S. based work forcedgpresented by the United Steelworkers of Amerita (USWA”). In May 2006, ou
Hawesville, Kentucky plant employees representethbyJSWA ratified a four-year collective bargaigiagreement that will expire on April
1, 2010. The agreement covers approximately 60@haorkers at the Hawesville plant. In AugusDBQour Ravenswood plant employees
represented by the USWA ratified a three-year lagpeement that will expire on May 31, 2009. Theeament covers approximately 580
hourly employees at the Ravenswood plant.

Approximately 90% of Grundartangi’s work force épresented by five labor unions under an agreethahexpires on December 31, 2009.
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Other Commitments and Contingencies

At June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we hadamulisg capital commitments of approximately $28,8id $67,732, respectively,
primarily related to the Grundartangi Phase V espanproject. Our cost commitments for the Grutatagi expansion may materially
change depending on the exchange rate between$eldllar and certain foreign currencies, printjptne Icelandic krona and the Euro.

In May 2006, we purchased foreign currency optieith a notional value of $41,627 to hedge a portbour foreign currency risk from
our exposure to the Icelandic krona associated eefital expenditures from the ongoing Phase Vegtaat Grundartangi. The option
contracts, which are designated as cash flow healyggjualify for hedge accounting under SFAS N@&, 1ABccounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No.133Hpve maturities through November 2007. Theoaiitierms of the contracts match
those of the underlying exposure. As of June 8072and December 31, 2006, the notional value and#hg on the foreign currency options
was $9,916 and $31,196, respectively.

As of June 30, 2007, the fair value of the optioh$2,285 is recorded in other assets. Includextoumulated other comprehensive
income is an after-tax unrealized gain of $3,510.

9. Forward Delivery Contracts and Financial Instruments

As a producer of primary aluminum products, weexposed to fluctuating raw material and primaryvahum prices. We routinely
enter into fixed and market priced contracts fer sale of primary aluminum and the purchase ofmreterials in future periods. The
following tables present our long-term primary aioum sales and tolling contracts. Certain consracé with a related party, Glencore
International AG (together with its subsidiarie&léncore”).

Forward Physical Delivery Agreements

Primary Aluminum Sales Contracts

Contract Customer \Volume Term Pricing
Alcan Metal Alcan 276 to 324 million Through August 31, 2007  Variable, based on
Agreement (1 pounds per yee U.S. Midwest marke
Glencore Metal Glencore 50,000 mtpy Through December 31, 2009 Variable, LME-based
Agreement | (2
Glencore Metal Glencore 20,400 mtpy Through December 31, 2013 Variable, based on
Agreement Il (3] U.S. Midwest marke
Southwire Metal Southwire 240 million pounds per Through March 31, 2011 Variable, based on

Agreement

year (high purity molten
aluminum) (4)

60 million pounds per
year (standard-grade
molten aluminum

48 million pounds per
year (standard-grade
molten aluminum
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(1) We and Alcan agreed to a one-month extendidinecAlcan Metal agreement in July 2007 in ordefinalize the terms of
a new agreement. The contract was extended thréugbist 31, 2007

(2) We account for the Glencore Metal Agreemeas & derivative instrument under SFAS No. 133. hate not designated
the Glencore Metal Agreement | as “normbaé€cause it replaced and substituted for a sigmifipartion of a sales contre
which did not qualify for this designation. Becauke Glencore Metal Agreement | is variably priogd do not expect
significant variability in its fair value, otherdah changes that might result from the absenceeof)t§. Midwest premiun

(3) We account for the Glencore Metal Agreemeiisik derivative instrument under SFAS No. 133dddithe Glencore
Metal Agreement Il, pricing is based on then-curraarket prices, adjusted by a negotiated U.S. M&typremium with a
cap and a floor as applied to the current U.S. Misiypremium

(4) The Southwire Metal Agreement will automatigaenew for additional five-year terms, unlesseitparty provides 12
months notice that it has elected not to rer

Tolling Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Billiton Tolling Agreemen BHP Billiton 130,000 mtpy Through December 31, 201 LME-based
1)

Glencore Toll Agreement Glencore 90,000 mtpy Through July 2016 LME-based
1@
Glencore Toll Agreement Glencore 40,000 mpty Through December 31, 201 LME-based
DE)

(1) Grundartangi’s tolling revenues include a prgmbased on the European Union (“EU”) import digiyprimary
aluminum. In May 2007, the EU members reducedetiemport duty for primary aluminum from six per¢ea three
percent and agreed to review the new duty afteetlrears. This decrease in the EU import dutpifionary aluminum
negatively impacts Grundartangi’'s revenues andhéurtiecreases would also have a negative impaGtremdartangi’s
revenues, but it is not expected to have a material effecbur financial position and results of operatic

(2) In December 2005, Glencore assigned 50% oblliag rights under this agreement to Hydro Alaenin for the period
2007 to 2010

(3) In April 2007, Nordural entered into a tolliagreement with Glencore for 40,000 mtpy of thedehé expansion capacity
at Grundartangi

Apart from the Alcan Metal Agreement, Glencore Métgreement |, Glencore Metal Agreement Il and Sauite Metal Agreements, v
had forward delivery contracts to sell 63,095 neeibhnes and 132,726 metric tonnes of primary atumiat June 30, 2007 and December
31, 2006, respectively. Of these forward deliveaptracts, we had fixed price commitments to sdl6@ metric tonnes and 2,538 metric
tonnes of primary aluminum at June 30, 2007 anceB¥er 31, 2006, respectively, of which 680 metiimes were with Glencore at June
2007 (none of the December 31, 2006 fixed pricemidments were with Glencore).

Financial Sales Agreements
To mitigate the volatility in our variable pricedrivard delivery contracts, we enter into fixed primancial sales contracts which settl
cash in the period corresponding to the intenddislety dates of the forward delivery contracts. @ar of these fixed price financial sales

contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedgesndiapy on our designation of each contract ahiteption. Glencore is the counterparty
all of the primary aluminum financial sales contsasummarized below:
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Primary Aluminum Financial Sales Contracts as of:
(Metric Tonnes,

June 30, 200" December 31, 200!
Cash Flow Cash Flow
Hedges Derivatives Total Hedges Derivatives Total
2007 54,00( 25,20( 79,20( 119,50( 50,40( 169,90(
2008 9,00( 100,20 109,20( 9,00( 100,20( 109,20(
2009 -- 105,00( 105,00( - 105,00( 105,00(
2010 - 105,00( 105,00( -- 105,00( 105,00(
2011 - 75,00( 75,00( - 75,00( 75,00(
2012-2015 -- 300,00 300,00( -- 300,00( 300,00(
Total 63,00( 710,40( 773,40( 128,50( 735,60( 864,10(

In the event of a material adverse change in aditworthiness, Glencore has the option to recaiiletter of credit, or any other
acceptable security or collateral for outstandiatpbces on these contracts.

The contracts accounted for as derivatives comfainses that trigger additional volume when thekaigprice for a contract month is
above the contract ceiling price. If the marketgexceeds the ceiling price for all contract rharthrough 2015, the maximum additional
shipment volume would be 710,400 metric tonnesiaé B0, 2007. These contracts will be settled higntWe had no fixed price financial
contracts to purchase aluminum at June 30, 20&oember 31, 2006.

Additionally, to mitigate the volatility of the natal gas markets, we enter into financial purcteasdracts, accounted for as cash flow
hedges, which settle in cash in the period cormedipg to the intended usage of natural gas.

Natural Gas Financial Purchase Contracts as of:
(Thousands of MMBTU
June 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

2007 2,66( 2,20(
2008 48C 48C
Total 3,14( 2,68(

Based on the fair value of our financial sales @mis for primary aluminum and financial purchasetracts for natural gas that qualify
as cash flow hedges as of June 30, 2007, an acatedwdther comprehensive loss of $40,837 is exgeaotbe reclassified as a reduction to
earnings over the next 12 month period.

The forward financial sales and purchase cont@esubject to counterparty credit risk. Howewer,only enter into forward financial
contracts with counterparties we determine to kditworthy. If any counterparty failed to perfoancording to the terms of the contract, the
accounting impact would be limited to the differerietween the contract price and the market pppéeal to the contract volume on the ¢
of settlement.
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10. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Six months ended June 3i

2007 2006
Cash paid for
Interest $ 22,23¢ $ 20,27:
Income tax 38,61¢ 31,44¢

Cash received fo
Interest 3,82% 30C

Income tax refund -- 577

Non-cash investing activitie
Accrued Nordural expansion co: (982) (1,919

Non-cash Activities

In the first quarter of 2007, we issued 50,985 ehi@f common stock as part of our performance gtraxgram to satisfy a $2,281
performance share liability to certain key emplsyetn addition, we recorded a $7,900 non-cashsaaient to the beginning balance of our

retained earnings as part of the adoption of FINsé& Note 4.

In 2007, we reclassified the undistributed earnioigsur joint ventures in our cash flow statememt.2006, these undistributed earnings
were reclassified out of “Other - net.”

In the second quarter of 2007, we recorded a nsh-less on extinguishment of debt of $2,461 fromwthite-off of deferred financing
costs for the Nordural senior term loan facility.

During the six month period ended June 30, 20072806, we capitalized interest costs incurred endbnstruction of equipment of
$2,858, and $6,430, respectively.

11. Asset Retirement Obligations

The reconciliation of the changes in the assetarient obligation is as follows:

For the six For the
months year ended

ended June December
30, 2007 31, 200€

Beginning balance, ARO liabilit $ 12,86 $ 11,80¢
Additional ARO liability incurrec 1,01¢ 2,30z
ARQO liabilities settlec (1,179 (2,23€)
Accretion expense 51€ 99C
Ending balance, ARO liability $ 1322 $  12,86¢

12. Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1540y Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 definesvalue, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expandsldgires about fair value measurements. This procement applies to other existing
accounting pronouncements that require or pernmitvédue measurements. The pronouncement doagquire any new fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 will be effective iiarficial statements issued for fiscal years begmaiter November 15, 2007, and the
interim periods within those years. We are culyem$sessing the new pronouncement and have ndeyetmined the impact of adopting
SFAS No. 157 on our financial position and resafteperations.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢"“Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finalndabilities.” The Statement
would permit us to choose to measure certain filghitstruments and other items at their fair valUde objective of the Statement is to
mitigate the volatility in reported earnings caubgdmeasuring related assets and liabilities déffidly without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. This fair value option waballow us to choose to measure eligible itemsiatalue at a specified election date. The
Statement is effective for us as of January 1, 2008 are currently assessing the new pronounceamehbhave not yet determined the impact
of adopting SFAS No. 159 on our financial positaord results of operations.

13. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (1oss): Si h ded J 3
ix months ended June 3!

2007 2006
Net income (loss $ 3582 $ (9577)
Other comprehensive income (los
Net unrealized (gain) loss on financial instrumentt of tax of $4,507 and $37,319,
respectively 4,37¢ (66,647
Net amount reclassified to income, net of tax ¢81$937) and $(21,625), respectivi 50,87: 38,24¢
Defined benefit pension and other postemploymenéfieplans adjustment, net of $375 t (570 --
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 58,26¢ $ (124,169
14. Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Pension Benefits
Three months ended June 3( Six months ended June 3(
2007 2006 2007 2006
Service cos $ 1,15¢ % 1,03C $ 2,13 $ 2,06(
Interest cos 1,44 1,214 2,85( 2,421
Expected return on plan ass (1,699 (2,700 (3,387%) (3,400
Amortization of prior service co: 182 10z 364 207
Amortization of net gain 21C 214 49( 427
Net periodic benefit cos $ 1,30¢€ $ 861 $ 2,450 $ 1,721

Other Postretirement Benefits

Three months ended June 3( Six months ended June 3(
2007 2006 2007 2006
Service cos $ 1,741 $ 1,46¢ $ 350 $ 2,93¢
Interest cos 2,82¢ 2,42( 5,822 4,84(
Expected return on plan ass -- -- -- --
Amortization of prior service co: (540 (219 (1,087) (43¢)
Amortization of net gain 1,200 1,03t 2,56¢ 2,07(
Net periodic benefit cos $ 522 $ 470¢ % 10,81: $ 9,40¢
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15. Other Assets

Components of Other Assets: June 30, 2007 December 31, 200!
Deferred tax asse— noncurren $241,47 $203,45:
Other assets (primarily investments in joint veeg) 85,15 75,95(
Capitalized financing fees 9,18¢ 12,97¢

$335,81 $292,38I

16. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

Our 7.5% Senior Notes due 2014, and 1.75% ConVe@bnior Notes due 2024 are guaranteed by eaohrghaterial existing and futt
domestic subsidiaries, except for Nordural US LLEach of the subsidiary guarantors are 100% owgeddntury. All guarantees are full
and unconditional and joint and several. Thesesate not guaranteed by our foreign subsidiasigsh(subsidiaries and Nordural US LLC,
collectively the “Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”). rQuolicy for financial reporting purposes is tooalhte corporate expenses or income to
subsidiaries. For the three months ended Jun20®, and 2006, we allocated total corporate expen$2,323 and $149 to our subsidiaries,
respectively. For the six months ended June 307 2t0id 2006, we allocated total corporate expeh$d,669 and $(3,452) to our
subsidiaries, respectively. Additionally, we changterest on certain intercompany balances.

The following summarized condensed consolidatirigriz sheets as of June 30, 2007 and Decembe0@a, @ndensed consolidating
statements of operations for the three and six hsoahded June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 andntertsed consolidating statements of
cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 26@7Jane 30, 2006 present separate results for Getite Guarantor Subsidiaries and the
Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries.

This summarized condensed consolidating finanofakimation may not necessarily be indicative ofrégults of operations or financial
position had Century, the Guarantor Subsidiarigh®Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries operated as indkgerentities.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2007

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company  Eliminations  Consolidatec
Assets:
Cash $ — $ 16,83 $ 170,89 $ — $ 187,72
Restricted cas 2,012 — — — 2,01z
Shor-term investment — — 121,68: — 121,68:
Accounts receivabl— net 93,07 18,07¢ — — 111,15¢
Due from affiliates 212,43( 2,511 1,061,41. (1,238,35) 37,99¢
Inventories 136,20¢ 32,43 — (1,295 167,34«
Prepaid and other ass: 1,80( 13,42¢ 5,123 — 20,35t
Deferred taxes — current portion 43,81( — 25,35 51,03t 120,19¢
Total current assets 489,33. 83,28: 1,384,46: (1,188,619 768,46’
Investment in subsidiarie 34,84( — 150,33¢ (185,179 —
Property, plant and equipme— net 425,63t 825,32: 994 — 1,251,95:
Intangible asse— net 54,59¢ — — — 54,59¢
Goodwill — 94,84 — — 94,84
Other assets 47,31: 16,83¢ 470,11! (198,45() 335,81«
Total assets $ 1,051,71¢ $ 1,020,28' $2,00591 $ (1,572,24) $ 2,505,67!
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Accounts payabl- trade $ 38,09: % 31,96¢ $ 9% — $ 70,07(
Due to affiliates 557,02: 85,70’ 246,58! (609,49 279,82(
Industrial revenue bonc 7,81¢ — — — 7,81¢
Long term deb— current portior — 61€ — — 61€
Accrued and other current liabilitit 18,93¢ 6,42¢ 43,11 — 68,47:
Accrued employee benefits costs — currer
portion 9,80: — 1,28( — 11,08
Convertible senior notes — — 175,00( — 175,00(
Total current liabilities 631,66¢ 124,72. 465,98! (609,49 612,87¢
Senior unsecured notes paya — — 250,00( — 250,00(
Nordural deb — 54,01¢ — — 54,01¢
Accrued pension benefit costs — less current
portion 4,537 — 16,25: — 20,78¢
Accrued postretirement benefit costs — less
current portior 213,34« — 1,42¢ — 214,77
Other liabilities/intercompany loe 100,25« 548,67¢ 15,30: (622,169 42,06°
Due to affiliates— less current portio — — 655,78: — 655,78
Deferred taxes 188,30:¢ 21,30¢ — (155,40 54,20¢
Total noncurrent liabilities 506,43¢ 624,00: 938,76. (777,57) 1,291,63.
Shareholders equity:
Common stocl 60 12 41C (72 41C
Additional paic-in capital 292,33: 136,79( 853,27 (429,129 853,27
Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) (119,100 5,87¢ (111,89 113,22¢ (111,89()
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (259,68)) 128,88 (140,629 130,79. (140,629
Total shareholders’ equity (86,38 271,56! 601,16- (185,179 601,16:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,051,71 $ 1,020,28 $2,005,91. $ (1,572,24) $ 2,505,67
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 200

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company  Eliminations  Consolidatec
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ — $ 11,86¢ $ 84,49¢ $ — $ 96,36
Restricted cas 2,011 — — — 2,011
Accounts receivabl— net 98,69( 14,68 — — 113,37:
Due from affiliates 55,85: 6,77¢ 752,95: (778,04 37,54:
Inventories 112,97! 32,60 — (169 145,41(
Prepaid and other ass 4,60: 12,98: 2,24¢ — 19,83(
Deferred taxes — current portion 66,53( — 11,007 25,571 103,11(
Total current assets 340,66: 78,91 850,70t (752,640 517,63¢
Investment in subsidiarie 22,22¢ — 20,967 (43,199 —
Property, plant and equipme— net 436,98 780,87¢ 91¢ — 1,218,77
Intangible asse— net 61,59« — — — 61,59«
Goodwill — 94,84 — — 94,84
Other assets 41,59¢ 19,29° 368,91 (137,429 292,38
Total assets $ 903,066 $ 973,93 $1,24150. $ (933,269 $ 2,185,23
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Accounts payabl- trade $ 3499 $ 29,80: $ 52 $ — $ 64,84¢
Due to affiliates 381,85! 56,66 73,73¢ (229,97() 282,28:
Industrial revenue bonc 7,81¢ — — — 7,81¢
Long term deb— current portior — 30,10¢ — — 30,10¢
Accrued and other current liabilitit 21,38: 4,52 49,24( — 75,14:
Accrued employee benefits costs — current
portion 9,80: — 1,28( — 11,08
Convertible senior notes — — 175,00( — 175,00(
Total current liabilities 455,84! 121,09¢ 299,30t (229,970 646,27
Senior unsecured notes paya — — 250,00( — 250,00(
Nordural deb — 309,33: — — 309,33:
Accrued pension benefit costs — less current
portion 3,62 — 15,61°* — 19,23¢
Accrued postretirement benefit costs — less
current portior 205,09: — 1,32 — 206,41"
Other liabilities/intercompany loe 215,83¢ 353,99 — (542,029 27,81
Due to affiliates— less current portio 9,31« — 545,55( — 554,86
Deferred taxes 143,42: 16,24( — (118,079 41,58
Total noncurrent liabilities 577,29( 679,56( 812,48! (660,099 1,409,24
Shareholders equity:
Common stocl 60 12 32t (72 32t
Additional paic-in capital 259,24¢ 85,19( 432,27 (344,439 432,27(
Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) (172,68 2,791 (166,573 169,89: (166,577
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (216,694 85,27 (136,31 131,42( (136,31)
Total shareholders’ equity (130,077 173,26 129,71( (43,19¢) 129,71(
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 903,06: $ 973,93: $1,241,50- $ (933,269 $ 2,185,223
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the three months ended June 30, 20(

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company  Eliminations  Consolidatec
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 27952: $ 91,35¢ $ — $ — $ 370,88
Related parties 66,55t 26,56" — — 93,12:
346,07¢ 117,92¢ — — 464,00!
Cost of goods sold 278,75¢ 77,55: — (69€) 355,61:
Gross profit 67,32( 40,37 — 69¢ 108,39:
Selling, general and admin expenses 11,43¢ 3,00¢ — — 14,44¢
Operating incom: 55,88: 37,36¢ — 69¢ 93,94%
Interest expens— third party (5,099 (3,549 — — (8,637
Interest income (expens- affiliates 8,83t (8,835 — — —
Interest incom 47C 72¢ — — 1,19¢
Net loss on forward contrac (205,24¢) — — — (205,246
Other expense — net (41€) (2,729 — — (3,139
Income (loss) before taxes and equity in earnir
(loss) of subsidiaries and joint ventu (145,569 22,99 — 69¢ (121,87
Income tax expense (benefit) 59,75¢ (2,435 — (27€) 57,04¢
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (loss) ¢
subsidiaries and joint ventur (85,817 20,55¢ — 422 (64,837
Equity earnings (loss) of subsidiaries and |
ventures 6,21¢€ 673 (60,665 57,94 4,16
Net income (loss $  (7959)% 21,23. $ (60,669 $ 58,365 $ (60,66¢)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the three months ended June 30, 2006
Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company  Eliminations  Consolidatec
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 27835 $ 77,88 % — $ — $ 356,24
Related parties 49,73¢ — — — 49,73¢
328,09: 77,88 — — 405,97t
Cost of goods sold 248,13: 51,35’ — (1,519 297,97.
Gross profit 79,95¢ 26,52’ — 1,51¢ 108,00«
Selling, general and admin expenses 8,191 18t — — 8,37¢
Operating incom: 71,767 26,34 — 1,51¢ 99,62¢
Interest expens— third party (6,160 (2,639 — — (8,799
Interest income (expens- affiliates 7,59¢ (7,599 — — —
Interest incom 60 92 — — 152
Net loss on forward contrac (30,45¢) — — — (30,45¢)
Other income (expense) — net (43) 80 — — 37
Income before taxes and equity in earnings (lo
of subsidiarie: 42,76¢ 16,27 — 1,51¢ 60,56
Income tax expense (17,439 (1,129 — (547) (19,109
Income before equity in earnings (loss) of
subsidiaries 25,32% 15,15¢ — 972 41,45
Equity earnings (loss) of subsidiaries and |
ventures 5,181 1,27 45,80( (47,907 4,347
Net income (loss $ 30,50¢ $ 16,427 $ 45,800 $ (46,935 $ 45,80(
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen- continued

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the six months ended June 30, 20(C

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company  Eliminations  Consolidatec
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 57327. $ 178/46: $ — $ — $ 751,73t
Related parties 105,96¢ 53,95¢ — — 159,92¢
679,24( 232,42 — — 911,66:
Cost of goods sold 541,24¢ 152,42: — (1,052 692,61¢
Gross profit 137,99: 80,00: — 1,052 219,04
Selling, general and administrative expenses 22,54 4,87( — — 27,41:
Operating incom: 115,44¢ 75,13: — 1,052 191,63:
Interest expens— third party (11,117 (8,56%) — — (19,680)
Interest income (expens— affiliates 16,89¢ (16,896 — — —
Interest incomi 2,06¢ 1,147 — — 3,211
Net loss on forward contrac (204,85¢) — — — (204,85¢)
Other income (expense) — net (325) (2,970 — — (3,295
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity |
earnings (loss) of subsidiaries and joint
ventures (81,879 47,83¢ — 1,052 (32,989
Income tax benefit (expense) 35,02¢ (5,665 — (403%) 28,95¢
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (loss) ¢
subsidiaries (46,857 42,17 — 64¢ (4,030
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries and joint
ventures 11,76¢ 1,441 3,58¢ (9,177) 7,61¢
Net income (loss $ (3508)8$ 4361 $ 3,68/ $ (8,52¢) $ 3,58¢

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the six months ended June 30, 20(

Combined
Combined Non- Reclassification:
Guarantor  Guarantor The and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company  Eliminations  Consolidatec
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 531,53¢ $ 123,17t $ — 3 — $ 654,71
Related parties 98,20 — — — 98,20
629,74t 123,17¢ — — 752,92:
Cost of goods sold 489,34¢ 81,32« — (2,222) 568,45(
Gross profit 140,39¢ 41,85: — 2,22z 184,47.
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20,15¢ 33€ — — 20,49t
Operating incom: 120,23¢ 41,51¢ — 2,222 163,97
Interest expens— third party (12,550 (3,000 — — (15,550
Interest income (expens— affiliates 15,041 (15,04°) — — —
Interest incom: 11€ 23z — — 34¢
Net loss on forward contrac (317,216 — — — (317,216
Other income (expense) — net (149) 25 — — (124)
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity |
earnings (loss) of subsidiaries and joint
ventures (194,51 23,72¢ — 2,22z (168,565
Income tax benefit (expense) 66,69( (643) — (800) 65,24
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (loss) ¢
subsidiaries (127,82)) 23,08: — 1,422 (103,319
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries and joint
ventures 8,71¢ 2,057 (95,777 92,54¢ 7,54

Net income (loss $ (119,109 $ 25,14( $ (95,77) $ 93,96¢ $ (95,777)
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen- continued

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended June 30, 20(

Combined
Combined Non-
Guarantor ~ Guarantor The

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Consolidatec

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (63,559 $ 84,64F $ — $ 21,08’
Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipn (5,707%) (1,847) (129 (7,67¢)

Nordural expansio — (58,987 — (58,98)

Proceeds from sale of prope 3 54C — 543

Restricted cash deposits 2,59¢ — — 2,59¢

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (3,10%) (60,287) (129) (63,517
Financing activities

Borrowings of lon-term debi — 30,00( — 30,00(

Repayment of lor-term debt — (314,800 — (314,800

Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic — — 487 487

Intercompany transactiol 66,66 265,40¢ (332,069 —

Issuance of common stock — — 418,10! 418,10!

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 66,66 (19,399 86,52 133,79.

Net change in cas — 4,96¢ 86,39 91,36:

Cash, beginning of the period — 11,86¢ 84,49¢ 96,36¢

Cash, end of the period $ — $ 16,83: $ 170,89 $ 187,72

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended June 30, 20(
Combined
Combined Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor The

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Company Consolidatec

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 55,40: $ 11,88¢ $ — $ 67,29(
Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipr (3,55€) (4,00¢) 4 (7,56¢)

Nordural expansio — (109,009 — (109,009

Proceeds from sale of prope 10 — — 10

Restricted cash deposits (4,000 — — (4,007)

Net cash used in investing activit| (7,547%) (113,010 (4) (120,56)
Financing activities

Borrowings of lon-term debi — 69,00( — 69,00(

Repayment of lor-term debt — (28¢) — (28€)

Net repayments under revolving credit faci — — (8,069 (8,069)

Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic — — 1,09(C 1,09(C

Intercompany transactiol (47,855 24,95¢ 22,89¢ —

Issuance of common stock — — 2,961 2,961

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (47,85%) 93,67 18,87¢ 64,69«

Net change in cash and cash equival — (7,457 18,87 11,42:

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period — 19,00¢ (1,259 17,75:

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ — 8 11,55: § 17,627 $ 29,17¢

17. Subsequent Event:

In July 2007, CAWV signed an extension of the Alcaetal agreement through August 31, 2007 in omléinalize the terms of a new
agreement.

In July 2007, Nordural repaid the remaining $8, p86cipal balance on their harbor loan and sit@$oaln addition, Nordural made a
$5,000 principal payment on their senior term |&aaility.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS — CAUTIONARY STATEMENT U NDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES REFORM ACT
OF 1995.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forwimaking statements. We have based these fonloaking statements on curr
expectations and projections about future evelitany of these statements may be identified by the of forwardlooking words such
“expects,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “believes,” “pjects,” “estimates,” “intends,” “should,” “could,"would,” and “potential” and simila
words. These forwarbboking statements are subject to risks, unceitgnind assumptions including, among other thitigsse discusst
under Part I, Item 2, “Management’s Discussion Andlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cyiimms,” and Part I, Iltem 1Financia

Statements,” and:

« The cyclical nature of the aluminum industry causasability in our earnings and cash flows;

« The loss of a customer to whom we deliver molteméhum would increase our production costs andriatiédy our sales and
marketing costs

« Glencore owns a large percentage of our commork stiod has the ability to influence matters reqgishareholder approval;

« We enter into forward sales and hedging contradts @lencore that help us manage our exposureitiuating aluminum
prices. Because Glencore is our sole metal hedgeterparty, a material change in our relationstith Glencore could affect how
we hedge our exposure to metal price r

« We could suffer losses due to a temporary or pgednnterruption of the supply of electrical pow@ione or more of our facilities,
which can be caused by unusually high demand, bigskequipment failure, natural disasters or otlagastrophic event

« Due to volatile prices for alumina and electricaWer, the principal cost components of primary dhum production, our production
costs could be materially impacted if we experiecttanges to or disruptions in our current aluminealectrical power supply
arrangements, production costs at our aluminairgfiaperation increase significantly, or if we areable to obtain economic
replacement contracts for our alumina supply ottalsl power as those contracts exp

« By expanding our geographic presence and divengjfgur operations through the acquisition of bauriining, alumina refining and
additional aluminum reduction assets, we are exptseew risks and uncertainties that could ad¥isgect the overall profitability
of our business

« Changes in the relative cost of certain raw matedad electrical power compared to the price ohary aluminum could affect our
margins;

« Most of our employees are unionized and any laixpuie could materially impair our ability to cordwur production operations at
our unionized facilities

« We are subject to a variety of existing environraklaws that could result in unanticipated costiatnilities and our planned
environmental spending over the next three yeasshanadequate to meet our requireme

« We may not realize the expected benefits of ouwtirstrategy if we are unable to successfully irdégthe businesses we acquire;

« We cannot guarantee that our subsidiary Nordurhbeiable to complete its planned expansion of@Gnhendartangi facility
(“Grundartan¢”) from 220,000 mtpy to 260,000 mtpy in the time f@stoor without cost overrun

« Our indebtedness reduces cash available for othveopes and limits our ability to incur additiodabt and pursue our growth
strategy;

« Our planned Helguvik project is subject to varicosditions and risks that may affect our abilityctimplete the project;
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« Continued consolidation of the metals industry rirayt our ability to implement our strategic goa#ectively; and

« Any further reduction in the duty on primary alumin imports into the European Union would furthecrdase our revenue at
Grundartangi

We believe the expectations reflected in our fodsdaoking statements are reasonable, based on infanmavailable to us on the date
this filing. However, given the described uncertigis and risks, we cannot guarantee our futurpeance or results of operations and you
should not place undue reliance on these forwasHlithg statements. We undertake no obligation tatg or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigare events or otherwise. When reading any &mdalooking statements in this filing, the
reader should consider the risks described abodelsewhere in this report as well as those desdniimder the headings “Risk Factors” and
“Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financadition and Results of Operations” in our AnnuabBrt on Form 10-K and Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities &xdhange Commission. Given these uncertaintiesiaksl, the reader should not place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations
Recent Developments

Equity Offering Raises $414 Million, Net of Offering Costs

In June 2007, we completed a public equity offepn§,337,500 shares of common stock, which indiuthe exercise of the over-
allotment option of 1,087,500 shares of commonkstata price of $52.50 per share, raising $437llfom before offering costs. We sold t
8,337,500 shares of common stock in a simultanetfasng in the United States and Iceland. Shafessmmon stock offered and sold in
Iceland are represented by global depositary rés;eigth one depositary receipt representing oreeshf common stock. The offering costs
were approximately $23.7 million, representing umd#ing discounts and commissions and offeringenges

Repayment of Nordural Debt

In July 2007, Nordural repaid the remaining $8.1liam principal balance on their harbor loan arte $dans. In addition, Nordural made
a $5.0 million principal payment on their seniamtdoan facility.

In June 2007, we used a portion of the net proctedsthe equity offering to prepay $200.0 milliohprincipal of the Nordural senior
term loan facility. The balance of the equity offfig proceeds is expected to be used as partidirigrfor the construction of a greenfield
aluminum smelter near Helguvik, Iceland and foregahcorporate purposes.

Alcan Metal Agreement extended to August 31, 2007

In July 2007, Century Aluminum of West Virginia,clrs (“CAWV") and Alcan agreed to extend the exigtiagreement through August
31, 2007 in order to finalize the terms of a neweagent.

Increasein electrical power tariff ratesin West Virginia

In May 2007, the West Virginia Public Service Corasion (“PSC”) agreed on proposed adjustments ttatiifé rates paid by purchasers
of electrical power from Appalachian Power Compé®PCo"). APCo supplies all the electrical powenuirements for CAWV’s
Ravenswood smelter. APCo requested an increabe tariff rate established in July 2006 for patiatcontrol additions and higher than
anticipated fuel, purchased power and capacitygdsar The agreement became effective July 1, 28@Thareased the special contract rate
for CAWV by approximately ten percent.
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Century signs power contracts for Helguvik project

In June 2007, we entered into an electrical powpply agreement with Orkuveita Reykjavikur (“ORY) $upply part of the electrical
power for the Helguvik project. The price of tHeatrical power provided under the contract willl@sed on the London Metal Exchange
("LME") price of primary aluminum. The contractssbject to various conditions.

With this agreement, together with the electric pogupply agreement entered into with Hitaveitau8nésja hf. (“HS”) in April 2007,
we have secured adequate electrical power sugdpligise initial phase of the Helguvik project. THelguvik smelter would be located
approximately 30 miles from the city of Reykjavikkchwould be operated through our Nordural subsydigihis site provides a flat location
and existing harbor, as well as proximity to thpita and other industry. To date, we have signbdraor agreement, site agreement and an
agreement to grant, as required, the necessaryrgotisn licenses and permits and terms regardiimgiples of taxation, with the
Reykjanesbaer Municipal Council, the Gardur Muratiouncil and the Reykjanes Harbour Board. Thet fihase of construction is
currently being planned based on the anticipatedahility of up to 250 MW of power in 2010, corpeding to a production capacity of
about 150,000 mtpy. An additional 185 MW is expddtebecome available by 2015 which would allovtaimcrease the Helguvik project’s
capacity to approximately 250,000 mtpy. Successfaipletion of the Helguvik project is subject taivas conditions.

EU lowers European import duty for primary aluminum

In May 2007, the European Union (“EU”) members metithe EU import duty for primary aluminum from piercent to three percent
and agreed to review the new duty after three yediisis decrease in the EU import duty for primalyminum negatively impacts
Grundartangi's revenues and further decreases vadsiidhave a negative impact on Grundartangi'smees . We do not expect the change
in the import duty to have a material effect on fimancial position or results of operations.

Century signs Memorandum of Understanding with Guangxi | nvestment Group Company

In June 2007, we signed a memorandum of understgrdth the Guangxi Investment Group Company td@epthe feasibility of
developing a high purity aluminum reduction project related bauxite and alumina supplies in China.

Results of Operations
The following discussion reflects our historicadutts of operations.

Century’s financial highlights include:

Three months ended June 3( Six months ended June 3(
2007 2006 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net sales
Third-party customer $ 370,88. $ 356,24 $ 751,73t $ 654,71!
Related party customers 93,12 49,73¢ 159,92t 98,20
Total $ 464,008 $ 405,97¢ $ 911,66. $ 752,92:
Gross profi $ 108,39. $ 108,00: $ 219,04« $ 184,47.
Net income (loss $ (60,667 $ 45800 $ 358/ % (95,777
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Earnings (loss) per common she

Basic $ @7 $ 141 $ 011 $ (2.9¢)
Diluted $ 1.77) $ 138 $ 0.1C $ (2.9¢)
Shipments« primary aluminum (millions of pounds

Direct 292.1 292.% 582.2 584.2

Toll 123.¢ 86.: 240.¢ 140.4
Total 415.¢ 378.€ 823.( 724.¢

$ %

Net Sales (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference

Three months ended June $ 464.C $ 406.C $ 58.C 14.5%

Six months ended June : $ 9117 $ 752.¢ $ 158.¢ 21.1%

Higher price realizations for primary aluminum retthree months ended June 30, 2007, due to imgidWE prices for primary
aluminum, contributed $24.4 million to the salesréase. Additional net sales volume contributegl@a&nillion to the sales increase. Direct
shipments were 0.2 million pounds less than theegaaniod in 2006 with toll shipments 37.5 millioaynds more than the same period in
2006 due to the Nordural expansion capacity cornmgtream during the second half of 2006.

Higher price realizations for primary aluminum iretsix months +ended June 30, 2007, due to imprbMel prices for primary
aluminum, contributed $73.1 million to the salesr@ase. Additional sales volume contributed $8&illion to the sales increase. Direct
shipments were 2.0 million pounds less than theegaeniod in 2006 with toll shipments 100.4 millipaunds more than the same period in
2006 period due to the Nordural expansion capaditinuing to come on-stream during the seconddfaf06.

$ %
Gross Profit (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference
Three months ended June $ 108.¢ $ 108.(C $ 0.4 0.4%
Six months ended June ¢ $ 219.C $ 1845 $ 34.F 18.7%

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, ingor@vice realizations, net of market-based aluroost and LME-based power cost
increases, improved gross profit by $4.7 millidncreased shipment volume contributed $13.6 milifoadditional gross profit. Offsetting
these gains were $17.9 million in net cost increasenprised of: increased power and natural gas ebsur U.S. smelters, $3.0 million;
increased costs for maintenance, materials andisap$7.7 million; increased costs for Grameraynaha, $2.6 million; increased net
amortization and depreciation charges, primarilgatndartangi, $1.8 million; other cost increag8 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, imprgvi realizations, net of market-based alumirset aad LME-based power cost
increases, improved gross profit by $40.3 millidncreased shipment volume contributed $35.3 mmilliloadditional gross profit. Partially
offsetting these gains were $41.1 million in neftdocreases comprised of: increased power andalaas costs at our U.S. smelters, $6.8
million; increased costs for maintenance, suped materials, $15.9 million; increased costs farercy alumina, $4.2 million; increased
net amortization and depreciation charges, primatiiGrundartangi, $5.8 million; other cost inceesas$8.4 million.
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$ %
Selling, general and administrative expenses (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference
Three months ended June $ 144 % 84 % 6.C 71.2%
Six months ended June : $ 274 $ 208 % 6.¢ 33.71%

The increases in selling, general and adminiseaikpenses for the three and six months ended3yr&d07 were primarily due to
spending on the proposed Helguvik project and atlpenses incurred for other business developnuotinttis.

$ %
I nterest expense (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference
Three months ended June $ 8.6 $ 8.8 % (0.2 (2.9%
Six months ended June @ $ 19.7 $ 156 $ 4.1 26.2%

Decreases in interest expense for the three meniled June 30, 2007 from the same period in 2G0€6we to decreased interest on the
Nordural senior term loan facility due to lower eage loan balances, offset by less capitalizeddste Increases in interest expense fol
six months ended June 30, 2007 from the same pieridd06 are primarily due to a reduction in cdptd interest related to the
Grundartangi expansion.

$ %
Net loss on forward contracts (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference
Three months ended June $ (205.9) $ (30.5) $ (174.9) (572.9%
Six months ended June : $ (204.9) $ (317.2) $ 112.2 35.4%

The loss on forward contracts for the three andveixths ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectivet, primarily a result of mark-to-
market adjustments associated with our long tenaritial sales contracts that do not qualify fohdésy hedge accounting. Cash
settlements of financial metal sales contractsdbatot qualify for cash flow hedge treatment fog three month periods ended June 30, 2007
and 2006 were $27.8 million and $19.0 million, extively. Cash settlements of financial metal salentracts that do not qualify for cash
flow hedge treatment for the six months ended B007 and 2006 were $54.9 million and $32.2iom)Irespectively.

$ %
Tax provision (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference
Three months ended June $ 57.C $ (19.1)) $ 76.1 398.4%
Six months ended June : $ 29.C % 65.2 $ (36.2) (55.5%

The changes in the income tax provision were dtre§the changes in pre-tax income and losseqygdsin the level of earnings and
losses within the various tax jurisdictions in whige operate and a change in the West Virginidaax We recorded a tax benefit of $4.3
million in the three months ended June 30, 200Admease the carrying amount of deferred tax assetsresult of a West Virginia tax law
change.

$ %
Equity in earnings of joint venture (in millions) 2007 2006 Difference  Difference
Three months ended June $ 42 % 43 $ (0.7 (2.9%
Six months ended June : $ 7€ % 75 % 0.1 1.2%

Our equity in earnings of joint ventures represeuntsshare of profits from third party bauxite, hgi® and chemical grade alumina sales
from the Gramercy and St. Ann Bauxite Ltd investtaen
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our statements of cash flows for the six monthsdntline 30, 2007 and 2006 are summarized below:

Six months ended June 3(C

2007 2006
(dollars in thousand:
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 21,080 $ 67,29(
Net cash used in investing activit| (63,517 (120,56))
Net cash provided by financing activiti 133,79. 64,69
Net change in cas $ 91,36: $ 11,42

Net cash from operating activities in the six maentinded June 30, 2007 was $21.1 million, whichuhedl a $121.7 million use of cash
for the purchase of short-term investments. Soebstments generally yield higher returns than casither money market
instruments. Including those investments, ourcash from operating activities increased due taawgd market conditions and additional
shipment volume from Grundartangi.

Our net cash used in investing activities for tixersonths ended June 30, 2007 was $63.5 milliomamily a result of the ongoing Phase
V expansion of the Grundartangi facility. The rémrag net cash used in investing activities corsigif capital expenditures to maintain and
improve plant operations offset by the return aftcdeposits for energy purchases and proceedstfrosale of assets. Our net cash used in
investing activities for the six months ended JBBg2006 was $120.6 million, primarily a resulttieé expansion of the Grundartangi facility
to 220,000 mpty capacity (Phase Ill/IV expansioflie remaining net cash used in investing actiitiensisted of capital expenditures to
maintain and improve plant operations and castegl@n deposit to support future energy purchases.

Net cash provided by financing activities during #ix months ended June 30, 2007 was $133.8 milNte increased our borrowings
under Nordural's $365.0 million senior term loanifigy by $30.0 million, which was offset by prirgal payments of $314.8 million on
Nordural debt. We received net proceeds fromgheance of common stock of $418.1 million relatedur equity offering in June 2007 a
the exercise of stock options, and recognized exizasbenefits from share-based compensation &fi@dlion. Net cash provided by
financing activities during the six month periodsd 30, 2006 was $64.7 million. We increased oaurdwings under Nordural's $365.0
million senior term loan facility by $69.0 millioshuring that period. We also received proceeds fitmerissuance of common stock of $3.0
million related to the exercise of stock options ascognized excess tax benefits from share-basagensation of $1.1 million, which
amounts were offset by repayments on our revoleneglit facility of $8.1 million and other repaymesrf long-term debt of $0.3 million.

Liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash flowrfr operations and available borrowings under o00%tillion senior secured revolving
credit facility (“Credit Facility”). We believe #se sources of cash will be sufficient to meetramar-term working capital needs. We have
not determined the sources of funding for our losgn debt repayment requirements; however, we\eeligat our cash flow from operatiol
available borrowing under our revolving credit fiigiand, to the extent necessary and/or econoliyiedtiractive, future financial market
activities will be adequate to address our longatkquidity requirements. Our principal uses o$lcare operating costs, settlement payments
on our derivative contracts, payments of interesbor outstanding debt, the funding of capital exfieires, investments in related busines
working capital and other general corporate reauodnets.
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In June 2007, we used a portion of the proceeds @quity offering to repay $200.0 million of pripal on the Nordural senior term loan
facility. During the six months ended June 30,2008e made $314.5 million in principal paymentstioe Nordural senior term loan facility.

As of June 30, 2007, we had $487.5 million of ineelbess outstanding, including $250.0 million dhgipal under our 7.5% senior
notes, $175.0 million of principal under our 1.78%nvertible senior notes, $46.5 million in prindipader the senior term loan facility at
Nordural, $7.8 million of principal under our indtal revenue bonds, and $8.2 million of princif@l various site loans at Nordural. Mc
information concerning the various debt instrumemd our borrowing arrangements is available ineNoto the consolidated financial
statements.

As of June 30, 2007, we had borrowing availabibty97.7 million under our Credit Facility, subjeotcustomary covenants. We issued
letters of credit totaling $2.3 million. We had other outstanding borrowings under the Creditlfgas of June 30, 2007. We could issue
up to a maximum of $25.0 million in letters of citachder the Credit Facility.

We are party to primary aluminum financial salestcacts with Glencore. In the event of a materibleaise change in our
creditworthiness, Glencore has the option to reqailetter of credit, or any other acceptable sgcar collateral, for outstanding balances on
these contracts.

Capital Resources

Capital expenditures for the six months ended 3M&007 were $66.7 million, $59.0 million of whiakas for the ongoing expansion
projects at Grundartangi, with the balance printjp®lated to upgrading production equipment, nteiming facilities and complying with
environmental requirements. Exclusive of the Gartahgi expansion, we anticipate capital expenetaf approximately $30.0 million in
2007. The Phase V expansion will require approtetgeb95.0 million of capital expenditures in 20@7/complete the expansion to 260,000
mtpy. At June 30, 2007, we had outstanding capaaimitments of approximately $27.4 million, prifiharelated to the Grundartangi Phase
V expansion project. We expect to incur approxatya$10.0 million for preliminary project developmtecosts for the Helguvik greenfield
project in 2007, of which approximately 75 percerit be expensed (not capitalized) in selling, gah@nd administrative expenses in
2007. Our cost commitments for the Grundartangaesion may materially change depending on theamgdrate between the U.S. dollar
and certain foreign currencies, principally the &and the Icelandic krona.

In May 2006, we purchased foreign currency optiwite a notional value of $41.6 million to hedge dareign currency risk in the
Icelandic krona associated with a portion of thegiteexpenditures from the ongoing Grundartangiagsion project to 260,000 mtpyAs of
June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the noti@latwutstanding on the foreign currency options $&9 million and $31.2 million,
respectively. The option contracts, which are giesied as cash flow hedges and qualify for hedgeusxting under SFAS No.133, have
maturities through November 2007. The criticafrterof the contracts match those of the underlykppsure.

As of June 30, 2007, the fair value of the foreignrency options of $2.3 million was recorded ihestassets. Accumulated other
comprehensive loss includes an unrealized gaimfrtai, of $3.5 million related to the foreign oemcy options.

Other Contingencies

Hawesville Electrical Power

In February 2007, we were informed that the CoffSrgineers is planning to lower reservoir waterels on the Cumberland River for
repair and maintenance. This may reduce elecfpimaluction from the dams of these reservoirs\reat expected to provide a portion of the

electrical power we purchase from Big Rivers fog by our Hawesville facility during 2007. If Big\Rrs is unable to provide sufficient
electricity our Hawesville facility, we will be refred to purchase electricity from alternate sosit@emarket prices.
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Based on current expectations of reservoir lewatsexpect any impact to be limited to the summentimg when usage rates on the Big
Rivers system are at peak consumption. We hawshpeed electrical power from alternative sourceshi® summer period and we paid
market prices which represent a premium over and@bur power contracts for this energy. Basethercurrent market for electrical pow
we do not expect the payment of the premium to leamaterial adverse effect on our financial cooditiresults of operation or liquidity.

Income Tax

Our income tax returns are periodically examined/yous tax authorities. Our federal income ttams for 2000 through 2002 are
currently under examination by the Internal ReveBaevice (IRS). In connection with these examoraj the IRS has raised issues and
proposed tax deficiencies. We have filed an adstrimiive appeal with the IRS and it is likely tlisis examination will conclude in 2007. \
believe that our tax position is well-supported ,dvased on current information, do not believe thatoutcome of the tax audit will have a
material impact on our financial condition or réswf operations.

Our federal tax returns beginning in 2003 are stilifgexamination. Material state and local incdmematters have been concluded for
years through 2002. West Virginia income tax mesuior 2003 through 2005 are currently under exation and the majority of other ste
returns beginning in 2003 are subject to examinatd/e are not currently under examination for leetandic tax returns and income tax
matters have been concluded for years through 2001.
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Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures bhout Market Risk
Commodity Price Sensitivity

We are exposed to price risk for primary aluminife manage our exposure to fluctuations in the pfqaimary aluminum by selling
aluminum at fixed prices for future delivery anddingh financial instruments, as well as by purahgsiertain of our alumina and power
requirements under supply contracts with prices titethe same indices as our aluminum sales cdstfée LME price of primary
aluminum). Our risk management activities do notude any trading or speculative transactions. folewing table shows our forward
priced sales as a percentage of our estimated gtiodicapacity.

Forward Priced Sales as of June 30, 2007

2007(1)(2) 2008 (2) 2009 (2) 2010 (2) 2011-2015 (2)

Base Volume

Pounds (000 183,77 240,74! 231,48! 231,48! 826,73:

Metric tonnes 83,36( 109,20( 105,00( 105,00( 375,00(

Percent of capacit 21% 14% 13% 13% 9%
Potential additional volume (2

Pounds (000 55,55¢ 220,90: 231,48! 231,48! 826,73

Metric tonnes 25,20( 100,20( 105,00 105,00( 375,00(

Percent of capacit 7% 12% 13% 13% 9%

(1) The forward priced sales in 2007 exclude July 2€iipments to customers that are priced based ingoprior month’s
market price

(2) Certain financial contracts included in the forwarited sales base volume for the period 2007 tiir@015 contain
clauses that trigger potential additional salesin@ when the market price for a contract montfb@s/a the base contr:
ceiling price. These contacts will be settled rhgnand, if the market price exceeds the ceilinigepfor all contract
months through 2015, the potential sales volumeldvbe equivalent to the amounts sho

Apart from the Alcan Metal Agreement, Glencore Mdétgreement |, Glencore Metal Agreement Il and Baite Metal Agreements,
which are described in Primary Aluminum Sales Caxtttable in Note 9 of the Consolidated Financtat&nents, we had forward delivery
contracts to sell 63,095 metric tonnes and 132r@@8ic tonnes of primary aluminum at June 30, 280d December 31, 2006,
respectively. Of these forward delivery contrawts,had fixed price commitments to sell 4,160 nedtshnes and 2,538 metric tonnes of
primary aluminum at June 30, 2007 and DecembeR@Q6, respectively, of which 680 metric tonnes weit Glencore at June 30, 2007
(none of the December 31, 2006 fixed price commitim@ere with Glencore).

Primary Aluminum Financial Sales Contracts as of:
(Metric Tonnes,

June 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Cash Flow Cash Flow
Hedges Derivatives Total Hedges Derivatives Total
2007 54,00( 25,20( 79,20( 119,50( 50,40( 169,90(
2008 9,00( 100,20( 109,20( 9,00( 100,20( 109,20(
2009 - 105,00( 105,00( - 105,00( 105,00(
2010 -- 105,00( 105,00( -- 105,00( 105,00(
2011 - 75,00( 75,00( - 75,00( 75,00(
201:-2015 -- 300,00( 300,00! -- 300,00( 300,00(
Total 63,00( 710,40( 773,40! 128,50( 735,60( 864,10(
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The financial sales contracts accounted for avagves contain clauses that trigger additionatwe when the market price for a
contract month is above the contract ceiling pridehe market price exceeds the ceiling pricedibcontract months through 2015, the
maximum additional shipment volume would be 710,4@fric tonnes. These contracts will be settledtmy. We had no fixed price
financial contracts to purchase aluminum at June€807 and December 31, 2006.

On a hypothetical basis, a $200 per ton increasigeimarket price of primary aluminum is estimatetiave an unfavorable impact of
$7.7 million after tax on accumulated other compredive loss for the contracts designated as cashhiédges, and lower net income $86.4
million for the contracts designated as derivatifesthe period ended June 30, 2007 as a restitiegprimary aluminum financial sales
contracts outstanding at June 30, 2007 (excludiagbtential additional volumes that could be tiggl under these contracts).

Additionally, to mitigate the volatility of the natal gas markets, we enter into fixed price finahpurchase contracts, accounted for as
cash flow hedges, which settle in cash in the pecrresponding to the intended usage of natusal ga

Natural Gas Financial Purchase Contracts as of:
(Thousands of MMBTU
June 30, 2007 December 31, 200!

2007 2,66( 2,20(
2008 48C 48C
Total 3,14( 2,68(

On a hypothetical basis, a $1.00 per million Bhifihermal Units (“MMBTU”) decrease in the markeicgrof natural gas is estimated to
have an unfavorable impact of $1.9 million, afeer effect, on accumulated other comprehensiveftoghe period ended June 30, 2007 as a
result of the natural gas financial purchase cetdrautstanding at June 30, 2007.

Our metals and natural gas risk management aesvéie subject to the control and direction of@emianagement. These activities are
regularly reported to our board of directors.

This quantification of our exposure to the commpgitice of aluminum is necessarily limited, asded not take into consideration our
inventory or forward delivery contracts, or thesafiting impact on the sales price of primary alwmmproducts. Because all of our alumina
contracts, except Hawesville’s alumina contrachv@ramercy, are indexed to the LME price for priynaluminum, they act as a natural
hedge for approximately 10% of our production. cAgune 30, 2007, approximately 50% of our produrcfor the remainder of
2007 (including 25,200 metric tonnes of potentiditional volume under our derivative sales corigpis hedged by our LMBased alumin
contracts, Grundartangi’s electrical power andrtglcontracts, and by fixed price forward delivand financial sales contracts.

Grundartangi. Substantially all of Grundartangi’'s revenuesaggved from toll conversion agreements with BHRitBn, Glencore and
Hydro Aluminum whereby Grundartangi converts aluanmovided by these companies into primary alumihomna fee based on the LME
price for primary aluminum. Grundartangi’'s LME-kasoll revenues are subject to the risk of de@easthe market price of primary
aluminum; however, Grundartangi is not exposeahtodgases in the price for alumina, the principal naaterial used in the production of
primary aluminum. In addition, under its power tant, Grundartangi purchases power at a rate whialpercentage of the LME price for
primary aluminum, providing Grundartangi with aural hedge against the market for primary aluminum.

Grundartangs tolling revenues include a premium based on xeenption available to Icelandic aluminum produdessn the EU impor
duty for primary aluminum. In May 2007, the EU ntens reduced the EU import duty for primary alumifiom six percent to three
percent and agreed to review the new duty afteetlyears. This decrease in the EU import dutpfionary aluminum negatively impacts
Grundartangi's revenues and further decreases vatsitdhave a negative impact on Grundartangi'smeee The decrease is not expecte
have a material effect on our financial positiorresults of operations.
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Grundartangi is exposed to foreign currency ris& ttufluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollarcampared to the Euro and the
Icelandic krona. Grundartangi’'s revenues and paests are based on the LME price for primary atwmi, which is denominated in U.S.
dollars. There is no currency risk associated wi#se contracts. Grundartangi's labor costs anemhinated in Icelandic krona and a portion
of its anode costs are denominated in Euros. #s@t, an increase or decrease in the value sktharrencies relative to the U.S. dollar
would affect Grundartangi’s operating margins.

Nordural does not currently have financial instratseto hedge commodity price risk. Nordural may dedsuch risks in tt
future. Nordural has entered into currency opti@nsiitigate a portion of our foreign currency egpre to the Icelandic krona for the Phas
expansion capital expenditures. See the discussitime Capital Resources section of “ManagenseBiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations.”

Other Market Risks

Interest Rate RiskAs of June 30, 2007, our primary debt obligatiarsthe $250.0 million of senior notes, $175.0ionillof convertible
senior notes, the $7.8 million in industrial reverbonds (“IRBs”), borrowings under our revolvingdit facility and the Nordural debt,
including $46.5 million of borrowings under its gmmterm loan facility. Our senior notes and camiaée senior notes bear a fixed rate of
interest and changes in interest rates do not sulbgeto changes in future interest expense. Bongs under our revolving credit facility are
at variable rates at a margin over LIBOR or thelkdaase rate, as defined in the credit agreememéreTwere no outstanding borrowings on
our revolving credit facility at June 30, 2007. €TiRBs bear interest at variable rates determilyagterence to the interest rate of similar
instruments in the industrial revenue bond markBsrrowings under Nordural's senior term loan faclhear interest at a margin over the
applicable LIBOR rate. At June 30, 2007, we hagraximately $56.0 million of variable rate borrows1 A hypothetical one percentage
point increase in the interest rate would increageannual interest expense by $0.6 million, asegmb debt reduction.

We do not currently hedge our interest rate risit,rbay do so in the future through interest ratepsior other instruments which would
have the effect of fixing a portion of our floatingte debt.

Auction Failure Risk Our short-term investments are primarily auctiate securities and could be subject to an audéiture. In the
event of an auction failure, we would be left hoffithe securities until the next auction with lieditaccess to our investments. The auction-
rate securities have a fixed rate until the nesétrelate (until the next auction). If the auctiaits, the rate would remain fixed at the previous
rate until the next auction.

Our primary financial instruments are cash and tstesm investments, including cash in bank accounts @ther highly rated liqu

money market investments and government secuniti@sh are considered cash equivalents and othent-tron investments, primari
auction-rate securities with maturities greatentB@ days that are not considered cash equivalents.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures
a. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2007, we carried out an evaluatimder the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including ¢
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial O, of the effectiveness of our disclosure cdst@nd procedures. Based upon
evaluation, our management, including the Chiefdakge Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, euded that our disclosure controls
procedures were effective.
b. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Répgr

During the quarter ended June 30, 2007, there havbeen any changes in our internal controls &maancial reporting that would ha

materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The following, which supersedes and replaces 8lefactors described under "Risk Factors" in Itefn df Part | of our 2006 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, describes certain of the raskd uncertainties we face that could cause ourduesults to differ materially from our
current results and from those anticipated in omvérd-looking statements. These risk factors shbel considered together with the other
risks and uncertainties described in “Managemebissussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” and elsewhere
herein.

The cyclical nature of the aluminum industry causes variability in our earnings and cash flows; our hedging transactions may limit our
ability to benefit from increased aluminum prices which are currently near historical highs.

Our operating results depend on the market for gmyraluminum, which is a highly cyclical commodit§th prices that are affected by
global demand and supply factors and other commitiblistorically, aluminum prices have been vodatihd we expect such volatility to
continue. Currently, aluminum prices are near hiséd highs. These prices are driven, in part, lmpgl demand for aluminum arising from
favorable global economic conditions and strong atedrin China. Although we use contractual arrangasi® manage our exposure to
fluctuations in the commaodity price, a decline imary aluminum prices would reduce our earnings @ash flows. Any significant
downturn in prices for primary aluminum would sificently reduce the amount of cash available totroee current obligations and fund our
long-term business strategies and may force thiaitraent of all or a portion of our operations aemr more of our smelters.

Conversely, as prices for aluminum increase, aedébur hedging transactions, including our forsvaales of primary aluminum and «
LME-based alumina and power contracts, limit oulitglto take advantage of these increased pribkse information about Century's
market risks is available in Item 3, “Quantitateued Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.”

We sell molten aluminum to the major customers of Ravenswood and Hawesville; the loss of one of these major customers would increase
our production costs at those facilities and could increase our sales and marketing costs.

Approximately 53% of our consolidated net salesX@d6 was derived from sales to Alcan and Southwilean’s facility is located
adjacent to Ravenswood and Southwire’s facilitpéated adjacent to Hawesville. Due to this prokymive are able to deliver molten
aluminum to these customers, thereby eliminatingcasting and shipping costs and our customerigjhiteand remelting costs and reducing
our sales and marketing costs. Century has coatvatt Alcan and Southwire which are due to expirAugust 2007 and March 2011,
respectively. We may be unable to extend or replaese contracts when they terminate. If we ardlerta renew these contracts when they
expire, or if either customer significantly redudsspurchases under those contracts, we would imigher casting and shipping costs and
potentially higher sales and marketing costs.

A material changein our relationship with Glencore could affect how we hedge our exposure to metal pricerisk.
We benefit from our relationship with Glencore, tangest shareholder. We enter into forward sahesheedging contracts with Glencore

that help us manage our exposure to fluctuatingialum prices. Because Glencore is our sole metiddneounterparty, a material change in
our relationship with Glencore could affect how mexlge our exposure to metal price risk, which cémloiact our results of operations.
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Losses caused by disruptionsin the supply of power would reduce the profitability of our operations.

We use large amounts of electricity to produce arimaluminum. Any loss of power which reduces thmparage to our equipment or
causes an equipment shutdown would result in acteduin the volume of molten aluminum produced amaly result in the hardening or
“freezing” of molten aluminum in the pots where it is produdeterruptions in the supply of electrical poweraur facilities can be caused
a number of circumstances, including unusually ldgmand, blackouts, equipment failure, naturalstésa or other catastrophic events. If
such a condition were to occur, we may lose pradador a prolonged period of time and incur sigraht losses. We maintain property and
business interruption insurance to mitigate losesslting from catastrophic events, but are regluioepay significant amounts under the
deductible provisions of those insurance policiesaddition, the coverage under those policies n@ybe sufficient to cover all losses, or r
not cover certain events. Certain of our insurgraiies do not cover any losses that may be ieclifrour suppliers are unable to provide
power during periods of unusually high demand. &eriosses or prolonged interruptions in our openatmay trigger a default under our
revolving credit facility.

The cost of alumina used at Hawesville may be higher than under our LME-based alumina contracts.

We acquire alumina used at Ravenswood and Mt. Halpyrices based on the LME price for primary alwmi. Gramercy supplies all of
the alumina used at Hawesville at prices basedram@rcy’s production costs. Those production cestsd be materially higher than the
price paid under LME-based contracts during perigden aluminum prices are low and raw materialased in the production of alumina,
such as natural gas, are high.

Changes or disruptionsto our current alumina and other raw material supply arrangements could increase our raw material costs.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers for ahamnthe principal raw material used to producenpriy aluminum. Disruptions to o
supply of alumina could occur for a variety of r@as, including disruptions of production at a gatar supplier’s alumina refinery. These
disruptions may require Century to purchase aluroim¢éhe spot market on less favorable terms thaemour current agreements.

Gramercy supplies substantially all the aluminadusteHawesville. Our joint venture bauxite minirgeoation in St. Ann, Jamaica
supplies all of the bauxite used in the productibalumina at Gramercy. If there is a significaisrdption of St. Ann bauxite shipments in
future, Gramercy could incur additional costs ikitequired to use bauxite from other sources.eéxample, in the fourth quarter of 2006, a
disruption in our Gramercy power supply increasedamsts as we replaced Gramercy — supplied alumitiiamore expensive spot market.

Our business also depends upon the adequate safpgilyer raw materials, including caustic sodarrahwm fluoride, calcined petroleu
coke, pitch, and cathodes, at competitive pricdtholigh there remain multiple sources for these maaterials worldwide, consolidation
among certain North American suppliers has redticechumber of available suppliers in this indusféndisruption in our raw materials
supply from our existing suppliers due to a labispdte, shortage of their raw materials or othdoreseen factors may adversely affect our
operating results if we are unable to secure atersupplies of these materials at comparablegrice
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Changesin therelative cost and availability of certain raw materials and energy compared to the price of primary aluminum could affect
our operating results.

Our operating results vary significantly with chasgdn the price of primary aluminum and the rawaniats used in its production,
including alumina, caustic soda, aluminum fluoridalcined petroleum coke, pitch, and cathodes. B@xae sell our products based on the
LME price for primary aluminum, we cannot pass ncréased costs to our customers. Although we attempitigate the effects of price
fluctuations through the use of various fixadee commitments and financial instruments angiging some of our raw materials and enc¢
contracts based on LME prices, these efforts atsib dur ability to take advantage of favorable ies in the market prices for primary
aluminum or raw materials. In addition, becauseharee sold forward a certain amount of our productiapacity in future years, rising raw
material and energy prices would negatively impactearnings and cash flow. See “ltem 3 - Quantéaand Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk.”

Electricity represents our single largest operatiogt. As a result, the availability of electricityeconomic prices is critical to the
profitability of our operations. We purchase vittyall of our electricity for our U.S. facilitieander fixed-price contracts through 2007. At
Mt. Holly, portions of the contracted cost of tHeatricity supplied to Mt. Holly vary with the suligr’s fuel costs. An increase in these fuel
costs would increase the price this facility paysdlectricity. Hawesville has unpriced power reguoients of approximately 27% of its power
requirements from 2008 through 2010. The profitghdf Hawesville could be adversely affected if e unable to obtain power for the
unpriced portions of Hawesville’s power requirenseait economic rates. We are currently reviewingomtions for pricing power in 2008
through 2010 at Hawesville. We are working witloedl power company on a proposal that would restraand extend Hawesville’s
existing power supply contract through 2023. Ifave not successful at replacing such power reqeinesnwe may be forced to curtail or i
a portion of our production capacity, which woubdver our revenues and adversely affect the pralfitiaof our operations. At Ravenswood,
power prices have some variability based upon & Iprice for primary aluminum and are subject tagible adjustments in the published
tariff. For instance, an agreement was reachedaniff rate case pending before the West VirgiPigblic Service Commission, or PSC, wh
became effective July 1, 2007 and which increaBedpecial contract rate for Ravenswood by appratéim 10%. Other possible future rate
cases could lead to a further increase in the phaeRavenswood pays for electricity and theredgrélase profit margins. We need to obtain
additional electricity for our expansions in Iceflamhere we have entered into MOUs or contractselfare unable to finalize these, we will
need to seek alternative sources of electricityckvbhould increase our costs.

Unexpected events, including natural disasters, may increase our cost of doing business or disrupt our operations.

Unexpected events, including fires or explosionswat facilities, natural disasters, such as hungsa unplanned power outages, su
disruptions, or equipment failures, may increasecost of doing business or otherwise disrupt qerations.

We are subject to therisk of union disputes.
The bargaining unit employees at Ravenswood andeldalle and at the Gramercy refinery are represkbyethe United Steelworkers
America (“"USWA?”"). Century’s USWA labor contracts ldawesville and Ravenswood and the labor conttaGramercy expire in March

2010, May 2009, and September 2010, respectivaly b@rgaining unit employees at Grundartangi goeesented by five unions under a
collective bargaining agreement that expires onedzer 31, 2009.
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If we fail to maintain satisfactory relations witimy labor union representing our employees, owrlabntracts may not prevent a strike
or work stoppage at any of these facilities infiitare. As a result of a threatened strike in 2096, we commenced an orderly shut down of
one of the four potlines at Ravenswood. Althoughribtice to strike was rescinded after we reaclyegeanent with the USWA on a new
labor contract, our production at Ravenswood watkaited while we restarted the potline. Any threete or actual work stoppage in the fu
could prevent or significantly impair our ability tonduct production operations at our unionizedlifees, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial results.

We are subject to a variety of environmental laws that could result in costs or liabilities.

We are obligated to comply with various federajesiand other environmental laws and regulatiotdyding the environmental laws ¢
regulations of the United States, Iceland, the peam Union (“EU”) and Jamaica. Environmental lawd eegulations may expose us to costs
or liabilities relating to our manufacturing opeéoats or property ownership. We incur operating s@std capital expenditures on an ongoing
basis to comply with applicable environmental laamsl regulations. In addition, we are currently avay in the future be
responsible for the cleanup of contamination atesofrour current and former facilities or for theelioration of damage to natural resources.

We, along with others, including current and forrmemers of a facility on St. Croix in the Virginldsds, formerly owned by a subsidi:
of ours, have been sued for alleged natural ressudamages at the facility. In addition, in Decen#®®6, we and the company that
purchased the assets of our St. Croix facility983 were sued by the Commissioner of the U.S. ¥itglands Department of Planning and
Natural Resources alleging our failure to takeaipractions specified in a Virgin Islands Coastah& management permit issued to
subsidiary, Virgin Island Alumina Corporation LL®, October 1994. Also, in July 2006, Century wamsad as a defendant together with
certain affiliates of Alcan Inc. in a lawsuit brdudoy Alcoa Inc. seeking to determine responsipititr certain environmental indemnity
obligations related to the sale of a cast alumiplete manufacturing facility located in Vernon, @ahia, which we purchased from Alcoa
Inc. in December 1998, and sold to Alcan RolleddRods-Ravenswood LLC in July 1999. Our known ligieis with respect to these and
other matters relating to environmental compliaaiee cleanup, based on current information, arexpécted to be material. If more
stringent compliance or cleanup standards undaramaental laws or regulations are imposed, presfipunknown environmental conditio
or damages to natural resources are discoverdteged, or if contributions from other responsipbeties with respect to sites for which we
have cleanup responsibilities are not availablemag be subject to additional liability, which miag material and could affect our liquidity
and our operating results. Further, additional emrnental matters for which we may be liable magesin the future at our present sites
where no problem is currently known, with respecsites previously owned or operated by us, bytedlaorporate entities or by our
predecessors, or at sites that we may acquiresifuthire. In addition, overall production costs n@gome prohibitively expensive and
prevent us from effectively competing in price stws markets if future capital expenditures andtsdor environmental compliance or
cleanup are significantly greater than currentrojgeted expenditures and costs. See “Manageni@istsission and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations -- Liquidityda@apital Resources -- Environmental Expenditures@ther Contingencies” in our 2006
Annual Report on Form 10-K and Note 8 to our coidsdéd financial statements herein for addition&imation regarding our
environmental matters and associated costs ansl risk
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Acquisitions may present difficulties.

We have a history of making acquisitions and weesekpo make acquisitions in the future. We areestttip numerous risks as a result of
our acquisitions, including the following:

« it may be challenging for us to manage our existinginess as we integrate acquired operat
« we may not achieve the anticipated benefits fromamguisitions; an

* management of acquisitions will require continuegtedlopment of financial controls and informatiostgms, which may prove to be
expensive, tim-consuming, and difficult to maintai

Accordingly, ourpast or future acquisitions mighbt mltimately improve our competitive position amgsiness prospects as anticipated.
I nternational operations expose usto political, regulatory, currency and other related risks.

Grundartangi, in Iceland, was our first faciliticlded outside of the United States. Following catiph of the ongoing expansion at that
facility, it will represent approximately 33% of oaverall primary aluminum production capacity. \aleo intend to construct a greenfield
aluminum smelter near Helguvik, Iceland and arda@kpg opportunities in other countries. The StnArauxite operations related to the
Gramercy plant are located in Jamaica. We are deriag the development of greenfield upstream atumi projects in several foreign
countries, including the Republic of Congo and JamaNe may in the future consider other investmémbther foreign countries.
International operations expose us to risks, inalgidinexpected changes in foreign laws and reguistipolitical and economic instability,
challenges in managing foreign operations, increasst to adapt our systems and practices to these in foreign countries, export duties,
tariffs and other trade barriers, and the burdérm®mplying with a wide variety of foreign laws. &udition, we may be exposed to
fluctuations in currency exchange rates and, &sualt; an increase in the value of foreign curresicelative to the U.S. dollar could increase
our operating expenses which are denominated ayabfzin those currencies. For example, Nordurakenues are denominated in U.S.
dollars, while its labor costs are denominatedt@ldndic krona and a portion of its anode costslanmminated in euros. In addition, a
majority of our costs in connection with the ongpaxpansion of the Grundartangi facility are denmated in currencies other than the U.S.
dollar. As we continue to expand the Grundartaadgility, construct the Helguvik facility and expéoother opportunities, our currency risk
with respect to the Icelandic krona and other fymeiurrencies will significantly increase.

Our higtorical financial information may not be comparable to our results for future periods.

Our historical financial information is not necesigaindicative of our future results of operatigrisancial position and cash flows. |
example, certain of our historical financial datarmt reflect the effects of:

« our acquisition of Nordural prior to April 27, 20
« the equity in the earnings of our joint ventureisipto October 1, 2004; ar

 the 130,000 mtpy expansion capacity of Grundartdragiwas completed in the fourth quarter of 2(
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Our high level of indebtedness requires significant cash flow to meet our debt service requirements, which reduces cash available for other
purposes, such as the payment of dividends, and limits our ability to pursue our growth strategy.

We are highly leveraged. We had an aggregate abappately $487.5 million of outstanding indebtedsas of June 30, 2007. In
addition, we could borrow additional amounts unaier $100 million credit facility, and we expectitmur additional indebtedness to finance
the Helguvik project. The level of our indebtednessld have important consequences, including:

« limiting cash flow available for capital expendis, acquisitions, dividends, working capital atiteo general corporate purposes
because a substantial portion of our cash flow fopmrations must be dedicated to servicing our;«

* increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid endustry conditions; an

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatg to, competitive and other changes in our bussirend the industry in which we
operate

We will be required to settle in cash up to thexgpipal amount of our $175 million convertible nofesich are convertible by the holder
at any time) upon conversion, which could increasedebt service obligations. In addition to outebtedness, we have liabilities and other
obligations which could reduce cash available theopurposes and could limit our ability to purswe growth strategy. More information
about our liquidity and debt service obligationsés forth under “Management’s Discussion and Asialpf Financial Condition and Results
of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resourcegluded herein.

We are also exposed to risks of interest rate asae. We had approximately $56.0 million of delthwariable interest rates at June 30,
2007, of which approximately $46.5 million were tmwings under Nordural’s $365 million senior temah facility. Nordural’'s annual debt
service requirements will vary, as amounts outstapdnder its term loan facility bear interest ataaiable rate.

Our ability to pay interest and to repay or reficamur indebtedness, including Nordural’s seniontan facility, our senior unsecured
notes and convertible notes, and to satisfy otbermaitments, including funding the ongoing Grundagizexpansion, will depend upon our
future operating performance, which is subjectdnagal economic, financial, competitive, legislativegulatory, business and other factors,
including market prices for primary aluminum, tha¢ beyond our control. Accordingly, there is nsuaance that our business will generate
sufficient cash flow from operations or that futtb@rowings will be available to us in an amourifisient to enable us to pay debt service
obligations or to fund our other liquidity needswk are unable to meet our debt service obligatmmfund our other liquidity needs, we cc
attempt to restructure or refinance our indebteslioeseek additional equity capital. There candbassurance that we would be able to
accomplish those actions on satisfactory terms.

Restrictive covenantsin our credit facility and the indenture governing our senior notes limit our ability to incur additional debt and pursue
our growth strategy.

Our revolving credit facility and the indenture @oming our senior unsecured notes each containusdovenants that restrict the way
we conduct our business and limit our ability toundebt, pay dividends and engage in transactool as acquisitions and investments,
which may impair our ability to pursue our growthasegy. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysisnancial Condition and Results
of Operations - “Liquidity and Capital Resourceany failure to comply with those covenants may d¢itate a breach under the revolving
credit facility or the indenture governing the regterhich may result in the acceleration of all @uastantial portion of our outstanding
indebtedness and termination of commitments underavolving credit facility. If our indebtednessaccelerated, we may be unable to re
the required amounts and our secured lenders éonddlose on any collateral securing our securdd. de

-3¢-



Table of Content

Substantially all of Nordural's assets are pledgedecurity under its term loan facility. In addlitj the shares of Nordural have been
pledged to the lenders as collateral. If Nordwalrable to comply with the covenants in its tepanl, the lenders would be able to cause
part of the amounts outstanding under the loatitiatd be immediately due and payable and forezlms any collateral securing the loan
facility. The term loan facility also contains néstions on Nordural’s ability to pay dividendsglading a requirement that Nordural make a
repayment of principal in an amount equal to 50%rof dividend paid to shareholders. See “ManagemBigcussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —ulidify and Capital Resources.”

Further metalsindustry consolidation could provide competitive advantages to our competitors.

The metals industry has experienced consolidati@n the past several years and there may be masmldation transactions in the
future. Consolidation by our competitors may enleatheir capacity and their access to resourcegritheir cost structure and put us at a
competitive disadvantage. Continued consolidatiay fimit our ability to implement our strategic ebfives effectively. We cannot reliably
predict the impact on us of further consolidatioriie aluminum industry.

The Helguvik project is subject to certain conditions and risks.

We intend to use the net proceeds from our Jun@& 2qQity offering primarily as part of the fundifay the construction of a greenfield
aluminum smelter near Helguvik, Iceland. This pcbje subject to various Icelandic regulatory attteo approvals and conditions. Recently,
there has been increasing opposition among soneesviot Iceland to the construction of new aluminemelters and the further development
of heavy industry in general. In March 2007, a loeferendum in another area of Iceland resultetiéndisapproval of a smelter expansion
project proposed by another primary aluminum preddior the municipality in which the referendum weedd. There can be no assurance
we will receive the necessary approvals to proeg#d construction of our Helguvik smelter, on adiiybasis or at all. In addition, such
approvals as we do receive may be subject to dondithat are unfavorable or make the project irciizable or less attractive from a
financial standpoint. Even if we receive necessgyrovals on terms that we determine are accepthgleonstruction of this project is a
complex undertaking. There can be no assurancevihaitill be able to complete the project within guojected budget and schedule. In
addition, unforeseen technical difficulties couldriease the cost of the project, delay the praeotnder the project not feasible. Any delay
in the completion of the project or increased costdd have a material negative impact on our farperformance and future prospects. To
successfully execute this project, we will alsocheearrange additional financing and either eintter tolling arrangements or secure a supply
of alumina.

If we are unable to procure a reliable source of power, the proposed Helguvik project would not be feasible.

Our proposed greenfield smelter near Helguvik,diedlwill require generation and transmission oftigeomally-generated electricity to
power the smelter. Our wholly-owned Iceland sulasidiNordural Helguvik sf, has entered into agreetsigvith two providers of geothermal
power in Iceland for a substantial portion of thaaver. These two power company agreements arecsubjeertain conditions, some of wh
are not expected to be satisfied until the secarzdtgr of 2008. These conditions include approlglthe boards of directors of the power
companies, as well as environmental agency apmosdditionally, Nordural Helguvik is in the proeesf finalizing with Iceland’s
transmission company an agreement to transmitdah@pto the new smelter. Conclusion of this powangmission agreement will require
consent of the municipalities affected by the traission of the power. Generation of the electiaaler contracted for the Helguvik smelter
will require successful development of new geottaremergy sources within designated areas in Idel&there are construction delays or
technical difficulties in developing these new dewimal fields, power may be delayed or may notMadl@ble. Factors which could delay or
impede the generation and delivery of electric poave substantially beyond our ability to continfluence or predict.
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Reductionsin the duty on primary aluminum imports into the European Union decrease our revenues at Grundartangi.

Grundartangi’s tolling revenues include a premiuasdal on the EU import duty for primary aluminumMay 2007, the EU members
reduced the import duty for primary aluminum froix gercent to three percent and agreed to reviem#w duty after three years. This
decrease in the EU import duty for primary aluminoegatively impacts Grundartangi’s revenues anihéurdecreases would also have a
negative impact on Grundartangi’'s revenues.

We depend upon dividends from our subsidiaries to meet our debt service obligations.

We are a holding company and conduct all of ouragens through our subsidiaries. Our ability toetneur debt service obligations
depends upon the receipt of dividends from ourislidres. Nordural’s senior term loan facility pégcsignificant limitations on Nordural's
ability to pay dividends. Subject to the restringacontained in our revolving credit facility aftindentures governing our senior and
convertible notes, future borrowings by our sulzsids could contain restrictions or prohibitionstbe payment of dividends by those
subsidiaries. In addition, under applicable law, subsidiaries could be limited in the amounts thay are permitted to pay as dividends on
their capital stock.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly.

The market price of our common stock has expergsamnificant volatility from time to time, and thvolatility may continue in the
future. From January 1, 2006, through August 7,72€@e intra-day sales price of our common stoch&$DAQ ranged from $26.14 to
$67.85 per share. In addition, the securities niarkave experienced significant price and voluraetflations. The market price for our
common stock may be affected by a number of factoctuding actual or anticipated variations in quarterly results of operations,
expectations about the future price of aluminunangies in earnings estimates or recommendationedwyiies analysts, changes in research
coverage by securities analysts, any announcenyai bf significant acquisitions, strategic parsigps, joint ventures or capital
commitments, developments in the aluminum industigiuding with respect to our major competitonsd aales of substantial numbers of
shares by current holders of our common stockerptiiblic market. In addition, general economicitigall and market conditions and other
factors unrelated to our operating performance caagse the market price of our common stock to tetile

Provisions in our charter documents and state law may make it difficult for others to obtain control of Century Aluminum, even though
some stockholders may consider them to be beneficial.

Certain provisions of our restated certificateiraforporation and amended and restated bylaws,edlsas provisions of the Delaw:
General Corporation Law, may have the effect ohyep, deferring or preventing a change in contfoCentury, including transactions
which our stockholders might otherwise have reakigesubstantial premium for their shares over th@nent market prices. For exam,
these provisions:

» give authority to our board of directors to issueferred stock and to determine the price, rightsferences, privileges and
restrictions of those shares without any stockholdée;

« provide, under our charter documents, for a bo&directors consisting of three classes, each afkvkerves for a different three-
year term:

« require stockholders to give advance notice pd@ubmitting proposals for consideration at stotdéis' meetings or to nominate
persons for election as directors; ¢

« restrict, under our charter documents, certainrtass combinations between us and any person whaditialy owns 10% or mol
of our outstanding voting stoc
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In addition, several of our officers have entergd employment and severance compensation agreethantprovide for cash payments,
immediate vesting of stock options and performaiw@es and acceleration of other benefits undéinarircumstances, including a change
in control of Century. Our 1996 Stock IncentiverRlas amended, also provides for accelerationeo&Hility to exercise stock options and
vesting of performance shares upon a change imalpahd our Non-Employee Directors' Stock OptidanRprovides for acceleration of an
option holder's ability to exercise stock optiop®n a change in control.

Thislist of significant risk factorsisnot all-inclusive or necessarily in order of importance.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurtHolders

The Annual Meeting of our stockholders was held May2007. The following are the results of stauiler voting on proposals that
were presented and adopted:

1. The election of the following directors forearn of three (3) years expiring at the Annual Megtf Stockholders to be held in 2010:

For Withheld
John C. Fontain 29,809,19: 610,959
John P. (Brien 30,238,85¢ 181,295
Peter C. Jone 30,244,69¢ 175,457

2. To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & ToucheP as our independent registered public accouritingfor the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2007.

For Against Abstain Broker Nor-votes
Ratify Deloitte and Touche LL 30,342,13¢ 67,616 10,400 0
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Item 6. Exhibit Index

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date  Filed Herewith
4.1 Supplemental Indenture No. 6 for Century X

Aluminum Company’s 1.75% Convertibli
Senior Notes, dated as of April 20, 2007
among Century Aluminum Company as
Issuer, Century Aluminum Development
LLC as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust
Company as Truste
4.2 Supplemental Indenture No. 4 for Century X
Aluminum Company’s 7.5% Senior Notes,
dated as of April 20, 2007, among Century
Aluminum Company as Issuer, Century
Aluminum Development LLC as Guaran
and Wilmington Trust Company as Trus
10.1  Toll Conversion Agreement 2, dated as of 8-K/A 000-27918 May 4, 2007 X
April 30, 2007 by Nordural ehf and
Glencore AG. ***

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the X
Chief Executive Office

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of tl X
Chief Financial Officel

32.1 Section 1350 Certificatior X

*** . Confidential information was omitted form this éxh pursuant to a request for confidential treatthand filed separately with t
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalt
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Century Aluminum Compan

Date: August 9, 200; By: /sl Logan W. Kruge

Logan W. Krugel
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: August 9, 200" By: /s/ Michael A. Bles:

Michael A. Bless
Executive Vic+President and Chief Financial Offic
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E xhibit Index
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Filed
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Herewith
4.1 Supplemental Indenture No. 6 for Century Aluminur X

Companys 1.75% Convertible Senior Notes, date
of April 20, 2007, among Century Aluminum
Company as Issuer, Century Aluminum Developr
LLC as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust Compan
Trustee
4.2 Supplemental Indenture No. 4 for Century Aluminum X
Company’s 7.5% Senior Notes, dated as of April 20,
2007, among Century Aluminum Company as Issuer,
Century Aluminum Development LLC as Guarantor
and Wilmington Trust Company as Trus

10.1  Toll Conversion Agreement 2, dated as of April 30,  8-K/A 000-27918 May 4, 2007 X
2007 by Nordural ehf and Glencore AG. *

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief X
Executive Officel

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief X
Financial Officer

32.1  Section 1350 Certificatior X

*** . Confidential information was omitted form this &xh pursuant to a request for confidential treatthand filed separately with t
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE No. 6

dated as of April 20, 2007
among
CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY,
as Issuer
CENTURY ALUMINUM DEVELOPMENT LLC
as a Guarantor

and

WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY ,
as Trustee

1.75% CONVERTIBLE SENIOR NOTES DUE AUGUST 1, 2024




THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE NO. 6 (this Supplemental Indenture”), entered into as of April 20, 2007, is among
Century Aluminum Company, a corporation duly orgadi under the laws of the State of Delaware (t8erhpany”), Century Aluminum
Development LLC, a limited liability organized undbe laws of Delaware, as a Guarantor (théntiersigned”) and Wilmington Trust
Company, as trustee (théfustee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company and the Trustee entered figtdrtdenture, dated as of August 9, 2004 (tBeiginal Indenture, " as
amended by Supplemental Indenture No. 1, datedl @stober 26, 2004, between the Company and thst@ey Supplemental Indenture No.
2, dated as of October 26, 2004, among the CompheyGuarantors party thereto and the Trustee,|8omgmtal Indenture No. 3, dated as of
July 25, 2005, among the Company, Century Alumimdidentucky LLC and the Trustee, Supplemental IndenNo. 4, dated as of
December 29, 2005, among the Company, NSA Genaraidtship and the Trustee, Supplemental IndeMoré, dated as of December 21,
2006, among the Company, Century California, LL@ #re Trustee, and as amended and supplementéisiupplemental Indenture,
hereinafter called thelhdenture "), relating to the Company’s 1.75% Convertible BeNotes due August 1, 2024 (th&ecurities”);

WHEREAS, the Company has agreed in Section 6.@8eoindenture to cause certain of its Subsidiadgwovide Securities
Guaranties in certain circumstances; and

WHEREAS, the Undersigned is required pursuant th Section 6.09 to execute and deliver this Suppigad Indenture to eviden
its Securities Guaranty.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises mitual covenants herein contained and intendirmgtiegally bound, the
parties to this Supplemental Indenture, herebyeagsefollows:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used herein and thetrwise defined herein are used as defined itndhenture.

Section 2. The Undersigned, by its execution isf Bupplemental Indenture, agrees to be a Guarantter the Indenture on the
terms set forth below.

Section 3. Subiject to the provisions in this Sap@ntal Indenture, the Guarantor hereby irrevocabt/unconditionally guarantet
jointly and severally, on a senior unsecured basésfull and punctual payment (or delivery, as¢hsee may be), if and when due, of (i)
principal amount or interest due on any Securityetier on the Final Maturity Date, upon redemptonepurchase, or otherwise, (i) the
Make Whole Premium payable, if any, on any Secpahd (iii) all other amounts payable by the Conypander the Indenture (including,
without limitation, the Company’s obligation to d&r Cash, Common Stock, or other securities, assgproperty (including Cash) upon
conversion of the Securities)Jpon failure by the Company to pay (or deliverttas case may be) punctually any such amount ifvameh
due, the Guarantor shall forthwith on demand payl@iver, as the case may be) the amount (or deradion) not so paid (or delivered) at
place and in the manner specified in the Indenflogthe extent that the Company has an electiateliver the form of payment, the
Guarantor shall have the same right of election.



Section 4. The obligations of the Guarantor ameouditional and absolute and, without limiting tienerality of the foregoing, will
not be released, discharged or otherwise affected b

0] any extension, renewal, settlemeampromise, waiver or release in respect of anygakibn of the Company under the
Indenture or any Security, by operation of law threowise;

(i) any modification or amendment ofsupplement to the Indenture or any Security;

(iii) any change in the corgiar existence, structure or ownership of the Compamany insolvency, bankruptcy,
reorganization or other similar proceeding affegtine Company or its assets or any resulting releaslischarge of any obligation of the
Company contained in the Indenture or any Security;

(iv) the existence of any mlaset-off or other rights which the Guarantor rhaye at any time against the Company,
the Trustee or any other Person, whether in coiorestith the Indenture or any unrelated transastiprovidedthat nothing herein prevents
the assertion of any such claim by separate swibmpulsory counterclaim;

(v) any invalidity or unenforceabilityla¢ing to or against the Company for any reasathefindenture or any Security, or any
provision of applicable law or regulation purpogito prohibit the payment by the Company of thaggal amount, Make Whole Premiurr
any, or interest due on any Security or any othawunt payable by the Company under the Indenture; o

(vi) any other act or omisstoract or delay of any kind by the Company, thestee or any other Person or any other
circumstance whatsoever which might, but for thevgions of this paragraph, constitute a legalauitable discharge of or defense to the
Guarantor’s obligations hereunder.

Section 5. The Guarantor’s obligations under @susities Guaranty will remain in full force andesdt until the principal of, Make

Whole Premium, if any, and interest on the Seasitind all other amounts payable by the Compawiufimg, without limitation, the
Company’s obligation to deliver Cash, Common Staxlgther securities, assets or property (includiagh) upon conversion of the
Securities) under the Indenture have been paidlin f at any time any payment of the principél Blake Whole Premium, if any, or interest
on any Security or any other amount payable byGbepany (including, without limitation, the Compasgbligation to deliver Cash,
Common Stock, or other securities, assets or ptpfiacluding Cash) upon conversion of the Secesitiunder the Indenture is rescinded or
must be otherwise restored or returned upon th@viescy, bankruptcy or reorganization of the Companotherwise, the Guarantor’s
obligations hereunder with respect to such payméhbe reinstated as though such payment had deerbut not made at such time.

Section 6. Each Guarantor irrevocably waives acceptance hepeesentment, demand, protest and any noticerongided for
herein, as well as any requirement that at any émeaction be taken by any Person against the @oyngr any other Person.
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Section 7. Upon making any payment with respeetpobligation of the Company pursuant to thisi@emmental Indenture, the
Guarantor making such payment will be subrogateti@aights of the payee against the Company weitipect to such obligatioprovided
that the Guarantor may not enforce either any mdisubrogation, or any right to receive paymerthimnature of contribution, or otherwise,
from any other Guarantor, with respect to such mayrso long as any amount payable by the Compamuhder or under the Securities
remains unpaid.

Section 8. If acceleration of the time for paymehany amount payable by the Company under therltudle or the Securities is
stayed upon the insolvency, bankruptcy or reorgdiuia of the Company, all such amounts otherwidgest to acceleration under the terms
of the Indenture are nonetheless payable by thea@ta hereunder forthwith on demand by the Truste@e Holders.

Section 9. Notwithstanding anything to the contiiarthis Supplemental Indenture, the Guarantod, @nits acceptance of
Securities, each Holder, hereby confirms thattihésintention of all such parties that the SemsiGuaranty of such Guarantor not constitute
a fraudulent conveyance under applicable frauduenteyancerovisions of the United States Bankruptcy Codaror comparable provisis
of state law. To effectuate that intention, thestee, the Holders and the Guarantor hereby ireblgagree that the obligations of the
Guarantor under its Securities Guaranty are limitethe maximum amount that would not render thar@utor’s obligations subject to
avoidance under applicable fraudulent conveyangeigions of the United States Bankruptcy Code gr@mparable provision of state law.

Section 10. The execution by the Undersigned of this Suppleaiédntenture evidences the Securities Guarantycti Suarantor,
whether or not the person signing as an officehefGuarantor still holds that office at the tinfeothentication of any Security. The
delivery of any Security by the Trustee after aotteation constitutes due delivery of the Secuwsit@uaranty set forth in the Indenture on
behalf of the Guarantor .

Section 11. The Securities Guaranty of the Guaramill terminate and be automatically releasedruthe release or discharge of
guarantee of the Senior Notes of such Guarantsetaf®rth in Section 6.09(b) of the Indenture.

Section 12. This Supplemental Indenture shalldemed by and construed in accordance with the Hwhe State of New York.

Section 13. This Supplemental Indenture may beesidn various counterparts which together willsténte one and the same
instrument.

Section 14. This Supplemental Indenture is annaiment supplemental to the Indenture and the Indersind this Supplemental
Indenture will henceforth be read together.

Section 15. The recitals contained in this Supplaldndenture shall be taken as the statemertteed€ompany and the Guarantors,
and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for ttegilectness. The Trustee makes no representatiotosthe validity or sufficiency of this
Supplemental Indenture.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdSupplemental Indenture to be duly executeaf dise date first above
written.

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY, as Issuer

By:

Name: Steve Schneid
Title:Chief Accounting Officel

WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY, as Trustee

By:

Name:Kristin L. Moore
Title:Senior Financial Services Offic

CENTURY ALUMINUM DEVELOPMENT LLC, as a Guarantor

By:

Name:Robert R. Nielse
Title:Secretary







SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE No. 4

dated as of April 20, 2007

among

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY,
as Issuer

CENTURY ALUMINUM DEVELOPMENT LLC
as a Guarantor
and

WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY ,
as Trustee

71/2 % SENIOR NOTES DUE 2014




THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE NO. 4 (this Supplemental Indenture”), entered into as of April 20, 2007, among Cen
Aluminum Company, a Delaware corporation (thédmpany "), Century Aluminum Development LLC, a Delawanaiied liability
company, as a Guarantor (th&fidersigned”) and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee (thertistee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company, the Guarantors party theaetbthe Trustee entered into the Indenture, dated August 26, 2004 (the "
Indenture "), relating to the Company’s 7 1 / 2 % Senior Nodeie 2014 (the Notes"), as amended by Supplemental Indenture No. ddat
as of July 25, 2005, among the Company, Centurynidum of Kentucky LLC and the Trustee, and Suppletaendenture No. 2, dated as
of December 29, 2005, among the Company, NSA GeRartership and the Trustee, and Supplementahlinde No. 3, dated as of
December 21, 2006, among the Company, CenturydZaiéf LLC and the Trustee; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to the Trustee entering ithe Indenture and the purchase of the Notesdtiders, the Company
agreed pursuant to the Indenture to cause any resslyired or created Domestic Restricted Subsatignther than Foreign-Owned Parent
Holding Companies) to provide Guaranties.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises muitual covenants herein contained and intendiriggtiegally bound, the
parties to this Supplemental Indenture, herebyeagsefollows:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwisiaegherein are used as defined in the Indenture.

Section 2. The Undersigned, by its execution of this Suppletaldndenture, agrees to be a Guarantor undemitenture and to be
bound by the terms of the Indenture applicable tar@ntors, including, but not limited to, Articl@® thereof.

Section 3. This Supplemental Indenture shall be governed lycanstrued in accordance with the laws of theeSthiNew York.

Section 4. This Supplemental Indenture may be signed in var@munterparts which together will constitute ond the same
instrument.

Section 5. This Supplemental Indenture is an amendment suggitahto the Indenture and the Indenture and thpp&mental
Indenture will henceforth be read together.

Section 6. The Trustee makes no representation as to thetyadidadequacy of this Supplemental Indentureherrecitals containe
herein.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdSupplemental Indenture to be duly executeaf dise date first above
written.

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY, as Issuer

By:

Name:Steven Schneid
Title:Chief Accounting Officel

CENTURY ALUMINUM DEVELOPMENT LLC, as a Guarantor

By:

Name:Robert R. Nielse
Title:Secretary

WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY, as Trustee

By:

Name:Kristin L. Moore
Title:Senior Financial Services Offic






TOLL CONVERSION AGREEMENT 2
Contract no. 161.06.27451-S
THIS TOLL CONVERSION AGREEMENT 2 is entered into asApril 30, 2007, by Nordural ehf, a company argac

and existing under the laws of the Republic ofdodl (“Nordural ), and Glencore AG, a company organized and existitiguthe laws «
Switzerland (“Glencore”).

Recitals
A. Nordural owns and operates an alumimeduction plant at Grundartangi, Iceland (tH&&nt ”).
B. Nordural and Glencore agreed the éegjivof Alumina by Glencore and the conversion ofts\lumina intc

primary aluminum at the Plant, pursuant to the tetinereof.
Terms of Agreement
The parties hereto, intending legally to be boupdhiis Agreement, hereby agree as follows:
Article |
DEFINITIONS

11 Definitions. In this Agreement, unless incoteis with the context, the words and expressiohfost below
shall have the following meanings:

“ Affiliate " means any other person or entity directly or inttiyecontrolling, controlled by, or under commomatm! with,
such person or entity, whether through the ownprehivoting securities, by contract or otherwise.

“ Alumina " means alumina meeting the Permitted Source Spatidns.

“Alumina Delivery” means the delivery of Alumina by Glencore duty udpa the Discharge Port pursuant to Sec
3.1.2.

“ Alumina Load Port ” means the port at which Alumina is loaded onto aséefor delivery to Nordural pursuant to
terms of this Agreement.

“Aluminum Delivery” means the delivery by Nordural of Product purstiar@ection 4.3.1.

“ Aluminum Load Port " means the port of Grundartangi, Iceland or suckrgplort in Iceland as may be agreed bety
the parties.

“ Applicable Laws " means any applicable laws, codes, rules and régugatany applicable judgments, decrees, writs
injunctions of any court, arbitration panel, ardior or Regulatory Authority and any applicableays] licenses, permits, directives or o
actions of any Regulatory Authority.

“ Bailed Property ” means all Alumina delivered by Glencore pursuanthis Agreement from the point of Alumi
Delivery to Nordural as specified in Section 6.{iricluding Alumina in transit from the DischargerBdrom the Discharge Port to the Pl
and Alumina in storage at the Plant), and all Pebglwoduced hereunder up to the point of delivgryNerdural to Glencore as specifiec
Article 1V (including Product in transit to storage in storage at the Plant), or any combinationhefforegoing. ‘Bailed Property " shal
not include Alumina in the process of Conversionirothe metal pads in the pots or any residue, diags, bath or bproducts of th
Conversion process or remaining after the satigfytire conversion ratio set forth in section 4.1.

“ Contract Year " means the twelve (12yonth period from January 1 through December 3dach year during which tt
Agreement is in effect, except that (i) for the yawhich the Start Date occursCbntract Year ” shall mean that portion of such year fi
the Start Date through December 31 of such yealr(igrfor the year in which the End Date occurSphtract Year'shall mean that portion
such year from January 1 through the End Date.

“ Conversion ” means the electrolytic reduction of Alumina into Itan aluminum and casting molten aluminum
primary aluminum, and the verb “convert” shall halve corresponding meaning.

“ Conversion Charge” shall have the meaning specified in Section 5.1.



“ Discharge Port” means the port of Grundartangi, Iceland, or soitter port in Iceland as may be agreed by thegsarti
“ End Date” shall have the meaning specified in Section 9.1.1

“ Event of Default” shall have the meaning specified in Section 10.1.

“ Force Majeure " shall have the meaning specified in Section 8.1.

“ Iceland Business Day’ means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday oy amavhich banking institutions in t
Republic of Iceland are required or permitted tusel

“ Lien " means any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encamcler, lease or other security interest of any kind.
“ LME " shall have the meaning specified in Section 5.1.3

“ LME Price " shall have the meaning specified in Section 5.1.3

“ Metal Premium ” shall be calculated in accordance with Exhibit E

“ MT " means a unit of metric weight equal to 1,000 ¢akoms or 2,204.62 Pounds.

“ Nomination ” shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.2.1

“ Notices” shall have the meaning specified in Section 11.6.

“ Permitted Source” means any of the following sources of alumina: Wogh, EurAllumina, San Ciprian, Alunor
Bauxilum, Suriname or any Jamaican source.

“ Permitted Source Specification$ shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.3.
“ Plant " shall have the meaning specified in Recital A.
“ Pound” means a unit of weight of 16 ounces avoirdupois.

“ Product " means primary aluminum products in the form of ingad sow converted on behalf of Glencore pursteatite
conversion ratio set forth in Section 4.1 and hgihre specifications set forth in Section 4.2.

“ Product Specifications” means the specifications for primary aluminum feth in Exhibit D, as the same may
amended from time to time by agreement of the gaurti

“ Quotation Period ” means the month prior to the month of schedulei/dry, irrespective of physical delivery.

“ Regulatory Authority " means any national, regional, European Union, nipaliclocal or other government or ¢
department, commission, board, agency or taxinigaaity thereof.

“ SHINC " means Sundays and holidays included, except:

Time Time

Start Date Star End Date Enc Comment

11:30 December 2 7:30 December 2 Christmas

11:30 December 3: 7:30 January : New year

19:30 Friday before first Monda7:30 Tuesday thereafter “Labour day” weekend
of August

00:00 Thursday before East  7:30 Tuesday thereafte Easter weeken

00:00 June 13 7:30 June 1¢ Independence De

19:00 Friday before " weekend?:30 Tuesday thereafter

after Easte
“ Start Date " shall have the meaning specified in Section 2.1.

“ Vessel” means any vessel suitable for the transportatiol@hina nominated by Glencore pursuant to Sec8dhan
Exhibit A .

1.2 References in Agreement. In this Agreement, unless the context otherwéspiires:

1.2.1 References to an Article, Section or Exhibit shallconstrued as references to that specific Artic



Section of, or Exhibit to, this Agreement.

1.2.2 References to a document (including this Agra@jmer to any provision of any document, shall be
construed as references to that document or pooviass amended or supplemented from time to time tipewritten agreement of the parties
thereto and with any further consent which maydugiired.

Article Il
TERM

1.3 Term. This Agreement shall be effective from the ddtsigning this contract and shall continue untiay2014
including, unless earlier terminated or extendegrasided in this Agreement.

14 Coordination of Alumina and Product Flow. In order to make the flow of Alumina and Prodeteunder
efficient for the parties, Glencore and Norduralsboordinate the timing of Alumina and Produdipshents and deliveries, taking into
consideration port availability and congestion, @anversion process and storage and shipment dagtiube made hereunder. In
connection therewith, Glencore and Nordural alsdl shiscuss/meet at least quarterly to establisHakdays for Alumina and Product
shipments to be made hereunder.

Atrticle Ill
ALUMINA
15 Alumina Delivery Obligations.
1.5.1 Glencore shall deliver or cause to be deliveoeldordural for Conversion at the Plant tonnagéolsws:
Year 2007: 1st half 2007: 11'000MT (+/-5pct iNordural's option)
2nd half 2007: 25'000MT (+/-5pct in Nordural's optbn)

Year 2008: 85'000MT per annum (+/-5pct in Nordurés option)
Year 2009-2014 including: 0®OOMT per annum (+/-5pct in Nordural's option)

of Alumina at the Discharge Port, under approprialis of lading or other documents of title; prded, howeve
that the annual quantity of Alumina required to dadivered hereunder shall be pro rated for any @eohtYear of less than twelve (.
months. Deliveries of Alumina hereunder shall ppraximately evenly spread throughout each Contraetr except for Contract Year 2(
delivery of Alumina to be evenly spread per thef gahr requirements stated in 3.1.1 above, andddkenshall make monthly declaratior
the quantities and dates of its Alumina Deliveriédl. Alumina Deliveries hereunder shall be deenteaccur when the Alumina passes
Vessel rail at the Discharge Port.

The final applicable tonnage within the toleranzéo¢ declared by Nordural by latest November 3@ yrior year of delivery. In case of
declaration the nominal amount shall apply.

If in respect of any contract year Nordural regslip